
CABINET MEMBER FOR COMMUNITY COHESION 
 
Venue: Town Hall, Moorgate 

Street, Rotherham. 
Date: Monday, 24 April 2006 

  Time: 10.00 a.m. 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

 
1. To determine if the following matters are to be considered under the categories 

suggested in accordance with the Local Government Act 1972.  
  

 
2. To determine any item which the Chairman is of the opinion should be 

considered as a matter of urgency.  
  

 
3. Apologies for Absence.  
  

 
4. Declarations of Interest.  
  

 
5. Minutes of the meeting held on 27th March, 2006 (herewith). (Pages 1 - 5) 
  

 
6. Community Planning Update (report herewith) (Pages 6 - 12) 
  

 
7. Rotherham MBC's Corporate Consultation and Community Involvement (CCI) 

Framework (report herewith) (Pages 13 - 45) 
  

 
8. Profile of Women in Rotherham. (Pages 46 - 79) 

 Head of Policy and Partnerships to report. 

 
9. Any Other Business.  

 Head of Policy and Partnerships to report re:  various matters. 

 
10. Date and Time of Next Meeting -  

 Monday, 22nd May, 2006 at 10.00 a.m. at the Town Hall, Moorgate Street, 
Rotherham. 

 

 



  
 

 

COMMUNITY COHESION 
27th March, 2006 

 
Present:- Councillor Robinson (in the Chair); Councillors Ali, Burton and Whelbourn. 
 
An apology for absence was received from Councillor Sangster.  
 
88. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 
 There were no Declarations of Interest made. 

 
89. MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD ON 27TH FEBRUARY, 2006  

 
 Resolved:-  That the minutes of the meeting of the Cabinet Member for 

Community Cohesion held on 27th February, 2006 be approved as a 
correct record for signature by the Chairman. 
 

90. NEIGHBOURHOOD RENEWAL STRATEGY  
 

 Andrew Towlerton, Policy and Research Manager, submitted a report 
which invited Members to consider and endorse Rotherham Partnership’s 
refreshed Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy.  The Strategy sought to 
ensure that all communities benefited from the delivery of the Community 
Strategy by addressing root causes of deprivation and driving forward 
improved services, co-ordination and delivery at neighbourhood level.  
 
The Strategy had been circulated for comments and amended accordingly 
to reflect these comments. 
 
The Strategy had also been amended to incorporate the key themes from 
the Local Area Agreement and the key role in its delivery.   
 
Changes have also been made to text supporting each of the 
communities of place in Section 4).  These changes mainly reflected the 
extension of the target neighbourhoods (from 20% most deprived to 25%) 
and agreed at Rotherham Partnership’s November Board meeting, many 
of which had limited robust data available from consultation exercises 
such as community planning. 
 
Comments about the population target area descriptions in the Strategy 
were noted and taken on board. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy be endorsed. 
 
(2)  That the implications for service delivery and policy development be 
noted. 
 
(3)  That the revised timetable for finalising the under-pinning action plans 
be noted. 
 

Agenda Item 5Page 1



 

 

(4)  That the report be submitted to the next L.S.P. Board. 
 
 
 
 

91. CONSULTATION DRAFT OLDER PERSONS STRATEGY FOR 
ROTHERHAM  
 

 Andrew Towlerton, Policy and Research Manager, submitted a report 
which invited Members to consider and approve Rotherham’s draft 
Consultation Older Persons’ Strategy, which aimed to improve the quality 
of life of local older people. 
 
The draft Strategy was based on detailed consultation, analysis and 
discussions and sought to promote a better quality of life for Rotherham’s 
increasing population of older people who were over 50 (which is 
expected to rise by 40% in 2021).  
 
It was structured around seven sections each based around a Priority 
Theme contained in the Community Strategy.  Each included a descriptive 
analysis of trends and issues arising in relation to the theme based on 
statistical analysis and the findings from consultation, together with a list 
of key objectives required to address the main issues identified. 
 
The objectives were broad and intended to set direction for activity rather 
than describe specific activities that partners, businesses, communities 
and others could take.  These specific actions would be developed into a 
supporting action plan to be agreed by the end of May, 2006. 
 
Its development had been led by a Task Group involving Programme 
Areas, P.C.T., voluntary sector, Rotherham Partnership and other 
stakeholders such as Age Concern and fiftyplus Rotherham.  It was 
chaired by the Council’s Older Persons’ Champion. 
 
It had been developed in a national and local policy context which had 
seen a major shift in policy towards older persons.   There had been a 
move away from focusing public services on the most vulnerable people 
(only 15% of the older population) and towards a broader approach and 
enabled all older people to remain as independent for as long as possible 
and live their lives to the full.  
 
It was recognised that health and social care services were only a small 
part of the support that older people valued and needed and only a small 
part of the experience of growing older.  This Strategy was intended to 
play a key role in achieving this, providing a framework and focus for older 
persons’ policy and service delivery. 
 
It was intended that consultation on the strategy would take place in late 
March and early April and the final strategy agreed in early May. 
 

Page 2



  
 

 

The difficulties associated with the development of the Strategy were 
acknowledged, given that the definition used for an older person included 
anyone over fifty years of age, where for many a transition would begin 
and some may be planning retirement. 
 
In addition to the agencies and individuals involved in this Strategy, it was 
suggested that information be made available on the Internet for comment 
by older people proficient with the use of I.T. 
 
Resolved:-  (1)  That the Draft Consultation Strategy be endorsed. 
 
(2)  That the wider consultation of the Strategy be agreed. 
 
(3)  That the timetable for developing the detailed action plan be agreed 
and noted. 
 
(4)  That the report be referred to the Adult Services and Health Scrutiny 
Panel. 
 
(5)  That the report be submitted to the next L.S.P. Board. 
 

92. COMMUNITY EMPOWERMENT NETWORK  
 

 Colin Bulger, Head of Policy and Partnerships, submitted a report, which 
detailed the signing of a Local Area Agreement by the Council with 
Partners including Voluntary Action Rotherham and the Government. 
 
As part of that agreement the Council would become the accountable 
body for the Community Empowerment Network, both for its work 
programme and funding stream. 
 
The Local Area Agreement also included a number of budgets, which 
needed to be either “aligned” or “pooled”. If aligned, then partners 
addressing areas of similar interest would continue to receive any 
Government funding using their traditional arrangements, but would be 
expected to develop closer alignment of aims and objectives, actions and 
how budgets were being used. This was simply a continuation of current 
development albeit at a faster rate.   
 
There was a significant difference for “pooled” budgets. Pooling signified 
that Government funds, which would normally go to partners would come 
to the Council as part of a single cheque” for disbursement. The Council 
would, therefore, act as the accountable body, which would bring a set of 
duties with it. This would be to ensure that the Government money was 
spent properly and that there was a performance management system in 
place to monitor and evaluate that targets were being met and objectives 
achieved. The Council would then make one report to the Government 
Office for Yorkshire and the Humber covering performance against all 
pooled budgets. 
 

Page 3



 

 

The Community Empowerment Network funding was originally a contract 
between Government Office for Yorkshire and the Humber and V.A.R.  
Under the Local Area Agreement, the Community Empowerment Network 
funding it was one of the few new budgets that would be pooled. 
 
In order to assure itself that V.A.R. were delivering against funding, the 
Council via Community Cohesion Delegated Powers needed to agree a 
work programme for the Community Empowerment Network. It would 
receive regular reports on progress against targets. Funding would be 
released against approval of these reports.  
 
Resolved:-   (1)  That the attached Plan and Work Programme be agreed. 
 
(2)  That the release of funding from Central Government to V.A.R. be 
authorised. 
 
(3)  That regular performance reports, detailing progress against actions, 
be received. 
 

93. SOCIAL INCLUSION FRAMEWORK  
 

 Andrew Fellows, Policy Officer, gave a presentation on the Social 
Inclusion Framework. 
 
The presentation drew specific attention to:- 
 
• Background to the Framework. 
• Purpose of the Framework. 
• Definition of Social Exclusion. 
• The Vision. 
• Social Excluded Groups. 
• Drivers for Social Exclusion. 
• How the Vision linked to action. 
• What the Council was currently doing. 
• Priority Actions. 
• Next Steps. 
 
Members welcomed the presentation and asked a range of questions, 
drawing particular attention to:- 
 
- Follow up action for Programme Areas that failed to respond to 

surveys. 
- Consideration of Cabinet Member Champion for Social Inclusion. 
- Issue of fairness for all. 
- Development of consultation for hard to reach groups who are not 

represented democratically or had access to educational 
opportunities. 

 
Resolved:-  (1)  That Andrew Fellows be thanked for his informative 

Page 4



  
 

 

presentation. 
 
(2)  That the contents be noted. 
 

94. DATE AND TIME OF NEXT MEETING  
 

 Resolved:-  That the next meeting of the Cabinet Member for Community 
Cohesion take place on Monday, 24th April, 2006 at 10.00 a.m. 
 

 

Page 5



 

 

 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion – Delegated 

Powers Meeting 
2.  Date: 24th April 2006 

3.  Title: Community Planning Update 

4.  Programme Area: Neighbourhoods 

 
5. Summary 
 
This report provides a progress report on Community Planning in Rotherham, outlining 
the processes which the Community Involvement Unit have developed and implemented 
in order to encourage and strengthen community participation in local decision making 
structures and service developments. This report specifically explores how the 
Community Involvement Team have:  
  
• Developed geographically based Community Plans across the Borough 
• Have used information identified  by communities to inform key actions in each of the 

7 Area Plans and Neighbourhood Charters ensuring a clear ‘golden thread’ to RMBC’s 
Corporate Plan and Rotherham Partnerships Community and Neighbourhood 
Renewal  Strategies 

• Engaged with Communities of Interest since the creation of the Community 
Involvement Unit  

• Ensured that quality assurance mechanisms are in place to monitor the impact local 
residents have had as a result of engaging in community planning activities 

• Impacted on strategic documents and Service Delivery Plans, in particular the 
development of the 7 Area Plans for each Area Assembly 

• Identified potential links via the community planning process for local residents to 
become involved in Neighbourhood Management 

 
In addition this report provides a number of key actions which the Community 
Involvement Team will deliver on in the next 12 months. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 

i. THE CONTINUED DEVELOPMENT OF COMMUNITY PLANNING ACROSS THE 
BOROUGH BE NOTED AND SUPPORTED. 

II. THE CONTRIBUTION OF THE COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT TEAM IN 
PROVIDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR RESIDENTS TO BECOME INVOLVED IN 
DECISION MAKING PROCESSES IS NOTED AND SUPPORTED. 

iii. THE CONTRIBUTION OF THE COMMUNITY INVOLVEMENT TEAM IN 
PROVIDING OPPORTUNITIES FOR COMMUNITIES OF INTEREST TO 
BECOME INVOLVED IN DECISION MAKING BE NOTED AND SUPPORTED. 

iv. THE CONTRIBUTION OF LOCAL COMMUNITY PLANS IN THE 
DEVELOPMENT OF AREA ASSEMBLY PLANS IS NOTED AND SUPPORTED. 

 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 6Page 6



 

 
 
 
7. Proposals and Details 
 
Background 
 
Rotherham MBC has been supporting local communities in the development of their 
Community Plans since April 2002 as part of the Councils Social Inclusion Unit.  In 
October 2004 this function was transferred over from the Chiefs Executive’s Office to the 
new Neighbourhoods Programme Area and a new management structure was 
established. Part of this restructure included the development of a dedicated Community 
Involvement Unit which currently employs a team of:   
 

• 7 Community Planning Officer  (1 per Area Assembly) 
• 7 Community Support Officers (1 per Area Assembly) 
• 1 Skills and Knowledge Co-ordinator (Borough wide - responsible for learning and 

development of community organisations) 
• 1 Community Leadership Manager (Borough wide - responsible for supporting 

elected members in their Community Leadership role and the work with Parish 
Councils) 

• 1 Community Engagement Manager  (To manage Community Planning and 
support Officers) 

• 1 Community Involvement Manager (Overall responsibility for the Unit). 
 
Since its inception over 12 months ago, the Community Involvement Unit with support 
from the Community Planning Team, has supported the development of a number of key 
pieces of work to ensure the priorities of local residents and the services which the 
Council delivers can demonstrate a clear ‘golden thread’ back to the Council’s Corporate 
Plan and Rotherham Partnerships Community and Neighbourhood Renewal Strategies; 
including: 
 

• The production of a Parish Council Charter which is a protocol for joint working  
between RMBC and the Borough’s Parish/Town Councils which sets out a basic 
statement of mutual rights, responsibilities and support. 

• The development of 7 Neighbourhood Charters which set out RMBC’s 
commitments to local residents in terms of what standards they can expect to be 
delivered in their area. 

• 7 Area Plans to detail priorities that residents have identified through the 
community planning process and the actions RMBC along with key stakeholders 
will take over the next 12 months in order to address their concerns. 

 
Development of Geographic Community Plans 
 
As part of the Service Plan for Neighbourhoods the Community Involvement Unit were 
tasked with producing 44 Community Plans by March 2008. As Community Plans are 
owned by communities they are often different in appearance. However, as the 
community planning process has evolved over the past 12 months many of the more 
recent plans have developed a similar framework and structure.  Examples of this 
framework can be found in the Plans that cover Whiston, Thurcroft, Aston-cum-Aughton, 
Anston and Rawmarsh & Parkgate. The development of a similar template for all the 
Plans will help to ensure consistency and enable comparisons to be made. This will form  
 
 

Page 7



 

 
 
 
part of the Community Involvement Unit’s Team Plan for the forthcoming year along with 
the development of a Performance Management Framework. By developing robust and  
meaningful corporate engagement mechanisms we can ensure that all local residents 
have had the opportunity to influence the development of the Council’s major plans and 
policies, including the Corporate Plan and the Community Strategy. 
 
Progress to date:  
 

• March 2006 - 25 areas of Rotherham have developed a Community Plan and have 
a lead community organisation that is it’s ‘custodian’. These community 
organisations are usually Parish / Town Councils or Community Partnerships. It 
should be noted that alongside the development of  the 25 Community Plans, the  
Community Planning Team are helping to build the capacity of local communities 
through the development and establishment of community organisations, socials 
enterprises and other engagement mechanisms, such as the Safer Neighbourhood 
Teams ‘Community Influence Cycle’. This will enable communities to deliver their 
Plan and work in partnership with other agencies, such as Rotherham MBC, to 
deliver the Neighbourhood Management Agenda. Recognition needs to be given to 
the fact that Community Planning is an organic process and the 25 community 
organisations that have already completed plans are responsible for keeping them 
up to date and feeding back to local residents on progress and outcomes. The 
Community Planning Team as part of their role, will continue supporting this 
process by working with community organisations to develop further consultation 
activity, establish community based projects, feed issues into key service providers 
and produce an up to date document. 

 
• All Neighbourhood Renewal Areas are covered by a Community Plan, apart from 

the Town Centre. This area has been prioritised and is being linked into the 
Environmental and Social Well-being element of the Town Centre Renaissance.  

 
• March 2007 – A further 8 Community Plans to be completed. 

 
• March 2008 - The remaining 11 areas to have Community Plans completed. 

 
Communities of Interest 
 
The Community Planning Team is committed to involving all Communities of Interest in 
geographic Community Planning and is constantly looking at ways of breaking down 
barriers to involvement, such as appropriate locations for meetings, disabled access, 
interpreters, hearing loops, etc. There continues to be discussions between Chief 
Executive’s and Neighbourhoods staff as to what mechanisms should be developed to 
assist Communities of Interest to be represented and influence decision making at a 
Borough wide level. The Corporate Community Involvement Group is currently looking at 
developing a ‘Corporate Community Involvement and Consultation Framework’. As part of 
this process the Chief Executive’s staff are mapping out known engagement mechanisms 
and community organisations which the Council and its partners currently use to discuss 
issues with the four identified Communities of Interest identified in the Neighbourhood 
Renewal Strategy  and any other communities of interest, such as the Lesbian, Gay, Bi-
sexual and Transgender community. Once this is established any gaps will be filled and  
 
 
 

Page 8



 

 
 
Officers nominated from the Community Planning Team to lead on the development of 
engagement mechanisms thus ensuring meaningful involvement of these communities. 
The Community Planning Team will continue to provide opportunities for Communities of 
Interest to get involved in the development of local Community Plans. For example, by 
end of March 2006 a series of events targeted at Asylum Seekers and Refugees will have 
taken place. 
 
Issues raised by Communities of Interests  will be passed on to Chief Executive’s staff 
who are currently looking at the most appropriate mechanism for cascading this 
information throughout the Council and its Partners to ensure the issues raised impact on 
future Service Plans and delivery.  By developing robust and meaningful corporate 
engagement mechanisms we can ensure that Communities of Interest can influence the 
development of the Council’s major plans and policies, including the Children and Young 
Person’s Single Plan and the Older Persons Strategy. 
 
Promotion of Community Planning 
 
It is essential that the Community Planning process and the Community Plans themselves 
are promoted through Rotherham and beyond. In order to improve the profile of 
Community Planning across the Borough the Community Involvement Team over the next 
12 months will:   
 

i. Update the first four editions of the ‘Understanding Community Planning’ 
newsletter  

ii. Develop a fifth edition of ‘Understanding Community Planning’ which will 
specifically look at tangible outcomes as a result of Community Planning.  

iii. Develop an easy to use webpage on the Rotherham MBC website that will allow 
users to find out about Community Planning activity in their programme area 

iv. Develop an interactive Community Planning tool that will allow a user to input 
concerns affecting the area in which they live – by September 2006. 

v. Create and distribute a quarterly briefing paper that will be circulated internally that 
would inform Officers of issues coming out of Community Planning, etc.. 

vi. Develop a Communications Strategy for the Community Involvement Unit. This will 
include how staff will support community organisations in the promotion of the 
Community Planning process in their area and / or their completed Plans. 

vii. Target resources in the Neighbourhood Renewal Areas – To achieve this 
Community Planning Officers will concentrate their community planning activities in 
the most deprived neighbourhoods and action plans will be developed with the 
target Communities of Interest as identified in the NRS. In addition a designated 
Community Planning Officer will be assigned as a Programme Area Champion for 
each of the Communities of Interest as highlighted in the Neighbourhood Renewal 
Strategy.  

viii. Produce an accessible engagement database which builds on past, present and 
future engagement activities be created. This will lead to the establishment of an 
accessible database that will provide a central reference point for all engagement 
type activities across the Borough. The database will enable all outcomes of 
engagement exercises to be shared more widely, the identification and sharing of 
best practice and provide the basis for joint working with out partner agencies 

ix. Develop a Performance Management Framework with key indicators in order to 
measure meaningful community participation. In future, rather than measure the 
number of active tenants and residents involved in decision making structures, the  

 
 

Page 9



 

 
 
 

Quality of Life indicators be used as a more appropriate method of engaging 
community influence in decision making structures. 

x. Undertake training on conducting health and equality impact assessments in order 
to ensure that Community Plans are reflective and inclusive of the diverse make up 
of that area. 

 
Ensuring and Measuring Quality  
 
Ensuring Community Plans and the Community Organisations that ‘own’ them are 
representative is paramount. In the past the processes adopted in some areas may not 
have been fully inclusive, e.g. mechanisms for targeting a particular Community of 
Interest have not been employed. This has led to the production of Plans that do not fully 
represent the profile or the needs of the whole community. This will be addressed by the 
introduction of a Performance Management Framework along with each of the 
Community Plans undergoing both a health and equality impact assesment on 
completion. 
 
The Community Planning Team may not have the same level of influence over the 
development of Community Plans in every area. Not all communities are keen to embrace 
Community Planning and some areas would prefer to access support from other 
organisations as opposed to Rotherham MBC, such as Objective 1, Voluntary Action 
Rotherham or the Yorkshire Rural Community Council. The Community Planning Team is 
to enter into discussions with other support organisations in order to address any 
inconsistencies which they may have encountered over the past 12 months. 
 
It is important that all Community Plans have a recognised set of standards; these 
standards need to be understood and agreed with community and voluntary 
organisations, Rotherham MBC and agencies. Achieving such standards would lead to 
increased confidence in the Plans and community organisations, i.e. they are 
representative, legitimate and have undergone quality assurance procedures. 
 
Impact on Strategic Documents and Service Delivery 
 
Priorities identified in Community Plans tend to fall into two categories  
 

i. Community based projects that are led by a local community organisation, which 
may be supported by other partners, such as Rotherham MBC (e.g. the 
development of a Parish / Community hall). 

 
ii. The need to improve services delivered by Rotherham MBC and other statutory 

organisations (e.g. more efficient street cleansing) 
 
All priorities identified through the community planning process have been fed into the 
development of the latest Rotherham Community Strategy, the Neighbourhood Renewal 
Strategy, the initial priorities of the Safer Neighbourhood Teams and the development of 
the 7 Area Plans and Neighbourhood Charters.  The Community Planning Team will 
ensure that all priorities identified through the Community Planning process in these 
strategies can be directly linked back to their source and provide a clear audit trial. Impact 
of community involvement on service delivery is a Key Line of Enquiry for the forthcoming 
CPA inspection. It is essential that a corporate mechanism is adopted, which allows  
 
 

Page 10



 

 
 
 
issues raised through Community Planning and other forms of community involvement 
and consultation to be fed into the decision making structure. This issue has been 
identified in the ‘Corporate Community Involvement and Consultation Framework’ 
currently being finalised by Officers with the Chief Executive’s Office. 
 
Area Assemblies and Area Plans 
 
The Community Involvement Unit was given the responsibility to develop 7 Area Plans 
that would inform the operation of the new Area Assemblies. It is envisaged that the new 
Area Assemblies will act as local service delivery partnerships from the start of the new 
municipal year. As a result 7 Area Plans have now been completed in preparation for 
them ‘going live’ in the new municipal year. The development of the 7 Area Plans will 
provide a clear example of how the Community Planning process is having a direct 
impact on local service delivery and development.  
 
8. Finance 
 
There are no direct financial implications regarding the continuation of the above work, 
other than maintaining the existing core budget of the Community Involvement Unit. 
 
The development of Community Plans will result in the more efficient delivery of 
mainstream services, and support local communities to lead on projects and provide 
services for them. This will also result in the attraction of external funding for example 
Neighbourhood Renewal funding. 
 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
The development of quality Community Plans and representative community 
organisations across Rotherham is dependant on a fully staffed team that has a robust 
Performance Management Framework. As indicated in the main body of the report there 
are a number of variables that could impact on this outcome, including a willingness to get 
involved and alternative support and advice from other agencies. An agreed set of 
Rotherham Partnership standards and benchmarks will address this issue. 
 
In order to ensure Community Plans have a direct impact on Service Delivery there needs 
to be a stronger corporate mechanism for the identified issues and priorities to be fed into. 
This should be addressed through the ‘Corporate Community Involvement and 
Consultation Framework’. 
 
The principal risk associated with the development of the Area Assemblies, and therefore 
the implementation of the Area Plans, is the potential lack of ownership and commitment 
from all key delivery partners. This risk will be addressed by a clear programme of 
development and consultation that builds upon the already strong foundations of 
partnership working in Rotherham. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
The development of Community Plans and the capacity building of communities to 
become involved in decision making is the cornerstone of Rotherham’s ability to deliver a  
 
 
 

Page 11



 

 
 
quality Neighbourhood Management Service. It helps address all the key elements of the 
Government’s vision for sustainable communities and neighbourhood development. 
 
Community Planning and other mechanisms of community engagement will also provide 
a strong suite of evidence for the forth coming CPA inspection and the Local Area 
Agreement Submission. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
Rotherham Community Strategy - 2005 
 
Rotherham Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy - 2006 
 
Corporate Community Involvement and Consultation Framework - 2006 
 
ODPM Sustainable Communities: People, Places and Prosperity – 2005 
 
ODPM Vibrant Local Leadership – 2005 
 
ODPM Citizen Engagement and Public Services: Why Neighbourhoods Matter - 2005 
 
Contact Name:  Martin Hughes, Community Engagement Manager 
   Ext – 6961; martin.hughes@rotherham.gov.uk 

Page 12



 

 
 
 
1.  Meeting: Cabinet Member for Community Cohesion 

2.  Date: 24th April 2006 

3.  Title: Rotherham MBC’s Corporate Consultation and 
Community Involvement (CCI) Framework 

4.  Programme Area: Chief Executives Department 

 
 
 
5.       Summary 
 

This report seeks endorsement from the Panel for the Council’s 
Consultation and Community Involvement Strategic Framework which 
aims to deliver improvements in community involvement and 
consultation activity across the Council. 
 
The Framework sets out the Council’s vision, aims and objectives for 
consultation and community involvement.  It also sets out a range of 
actions to ensure that consultation and community involvement under-
pin and is built into Council policy and service delivery.  
 
This develops the draft that was initially reported to and approved by 
CMT and Cabinet and agreed in November and has been the subject 
of further internal and external consultation. 
 
The Framework was agreed by the Cabinet at its meeting on the 15th 
March. 
 

6.      Recommendations 
 

The Panel is asked to:  
 
1. The Panel is asked to consider and endorse the Framework. 
2. To give any comments on the Framework.  
3. To agree to receive regular reports on progress made. 
 
 

 
 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL – REPORT TO MEMBERS 

Agenda Item 7Page 13



7.     Proposals and Details 
 

Strengthening Community Involvement and Consultation (CCI) is a 
Year Ahead Commitment (No. 7) which RMBC commits to developing 
a Framework to ensure that communities, citizens and service users in 
Rotherham have a voice to influence the shaping and delivery of policy 
and services by the council. The Framework identifies why Community 
Involvement and Consultation is important, where new approaches are 
needed and it draws upon good practice that has been identified by the 
Audit Commission and Yorkshire Forward 

 
It has also been influenced by the Community Involvement and 
Consultation Position Statements which CMT has previously 
considered.  Each statement examined the effectiveness of the 
Council’s approach to Consultation and Community Involvement, and 
made recommendations on how these can be improved.   
 
The Framework (please see Appendix 1) is not intended to replace 
existing work and good practice, but to further improve on it. It is a 
living document and, as such, will be constantly monitored and 
changed in light of experience and developments.   

 
It is divided into two main parts.  The first part sets out the context and 
the council’s approach to consultation and community involvement. 
The second part sets out the specific areas of activity required to 
achieve improvements. This includes the Action Plan which has been 
produced with key Strategic Objectives and Key Actions that are 
needed to deliver the Framework.  
 

The draft report was agreed by CMT and Cabinet in October 2005 
seeking approval for internal and external consultation on the Framework 
between November and February 2006 which was agreed to ensure 
delivery of Action Plan can commence 1st April 2006.  
 
Internal consultation has been carried out through the Programme Area 
Executive Directors and the Corporate Consultation Coordination Group 
and the Corporate Community Involvement Group. External consultation 
has taken place with South Yorkshire Police, Rotherham PCT, VAR and 
REMA.  
 

The report changed significantly after consultation, with the first part of the 
Framework incorporating the council’s good practice, successes and areas for 
improvement. The Action Plan has also developed further with changes as the 
objectives have changed, and the 5 themes for the Action Plan have slightly 
changed. The original ones were Community Activity, Organisational 
Development, Involvement in Decision Making, Service Improvement and 
Performance Management. The new 5 themes are: 
 

• Improving quality, effectiveness and coordination of CCI,  

Page 14



• Raise awareness of the principles of effective consultation and 
community involvement, 

• Ensure that all communities are involved, 
• Service and Policy Improvement and  
• Performance Management. 

 
8.      Finance 
 

The Community Involvement/Consultation will determine the actions 
needed to deliver Community Involvement and Consultation. The 
actions will be delivered through Programme Area’s existing budgets. 
The development of the Framework itself will be met through the Chief 
Executive’s budget. 

 
9.      Risks and Uncertainties 
 

If there is no Community Involvement/Consultation Framework 
developed and implemented, then it will be difficult make improvements 
that are needed to ensure that Community Involvement and 
Consultation is delivered effectively in terms of influencing policy, 
service planning and delivery. If the Framework is implemented, then 
this will have a positive impact on the Council’s effectiveness and 
efficiency in meeting needs and involving local people. 

 
10.     Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 

Improving the level of involvement of local people is a major part of the 
Government’s agenda to delivering improved services and policies and 
greater user satisfaction, nationally and locally. 

 
It has given local authorities a raft of enhanced powers and duties to 
help achieve this.  These powers and duties can be divided into three 
main categories.    

 
Legal requirements such as to consult the business community when 
setting the budget, or the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
that has a requirement to consult on and submit a “statement of 
community involvement” as part of preparing a Local Development 
Framework. Involving service users is also a statutory requirement 
under equal opportunities legislation, for example the Race Relations 
Amendment Act 2000. 

 
General requirements such as the Local Government Act 1999 that 
introduced best value reviews and requires consultation to secure 
continuous improvements in the way in which Local Authority functions 
are exercised, and the Local Government Act 2003 which enables local 
authorities to hold local polls to assess opinion on local services and 
expenditure.  

 
Community involvement and Consultation has become an integral part 

Page 15



of the Council’s policy making process.  Every year it undertakes 
hundreds of consultation exercises, both internally and externally 
aimed at service users, non service users, residents, partners and 
other stakeholders. 

 
It is at the heart of Rotherham’s new Community Strategy and the 
Council’s Corporate Plan. A good example is the shared Priority 
Theme Rotherham Proud.    

 
Community Involvement is a cross-cutting objective in the Local Area 
Agreements. This is to ensure an increase in community and service-
user engagement and involvement, supporting the development of 
volunteering, thus enabling greater local influence in decision making 
and service delivery. 
 
The main recommendations from the last Corporate Assessment 
carried out demonstrated the need for the Council to improve 
Community Involvement. Key weaknesses were identified: 

• Determine a role for area assemblies and ensure they provide 
appropriate community leadership. 

• Improve the quality of decision making forums.  
• There was little evidence of consultation changing priorities. 

Other inspection reports have indicated weaknesses in community 
involvement. 

 
CPA will measure Rotherham Metropolitan Borough Council’s proven 
ability to engage with and lead their communities, deliver community 
priorities in partnership with others and ensure continuous 
improvement across a range of council services. The Audit 
Commission has developed an analysis of the criteria for assessing 
community engagement as part of the new CPA 2005, for the purposes 
of this analysis; community engagement is separated into 3 aspects: 

 
• User focus/citizen involvement. 
• Engagement with ‘vulnerable, minority and hard to reach groups’. 
• The role of the voluntary and community sector. 

 
CPA requires that local authorities are user and citizen focussed and 
that reflect the needs and diversity of the communities that they serve. 
The council should take into consideration the needs of all sections of 
the community in setting priorities and consulting with communities and 
partners when making changes to priorities.  

 
11.    Background Papers and Consultation 
 

Community Involvement and Consultation Framework with Action Plan 
(Appendix 1)  
 
The draft report was agreed by CMT and Cabinet in October 2005 
seeking approval for internal and external consultation on the Framework 

Page 16



between November and February 2006 which was agreed to ensure 
delivery of Action Plan can commence 1st April 2006.  
 
Internal consultation has been carried out with all the programme area 
Executive Directors and the Corporate Consultation Coordination Group 
and the Corporate Community Involvement Group.  
 
External consultation has taken place with South Yorkshire Police, 
Rotherham PCT, VAR and REMA. 
 
The Framework has now been agreed by CMT on 27th February 2006 
and by Cabinet on 15th March 2006. 
 

Contact Name: 
 
Lee Adams, Assistant Chief Executive Ext. 2775 and email. 
lee.adams@rotherham.gov.uk  
 
Andrew Towlerton, Policy and Research Manager, Ext. 2785 and email. 
andrew.towlerton@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Asim Munir, Principal Community Involvement Officer Ext. 2786 and email. 
asim.munir@rotherham.gov.uk 
 
Dawn Price, Corporate Consultation Officer, Ext.2783 and email 
dawn.price@rotherham.gov.uk  
 

Page 17



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Corporate CCI 
(Consultation and 

Community 
Involvement) 
Framework 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

March 2006 

Page 18



INTRODUCTION 
 
Consultation and Community 
Involvement (CCI) is at the heart of 
the Council’s approach to policy 
making, service delivery and 
community leadership. 
 
It is integral to the new Shared 
Vision for the Borough as set in 
Rotherham’s Community Strategy.  
This for example seeks to ensure 
that “Active Citizenship and 
democracy will under-pin how 
Rotherham works”… and “that 
there will be many opportunities for 
people to be involved in civic life 
and decision making”. 
 
This framework sets out the 
Council’s vision, aims and 
objectives for CCI.  It also sets out 
a range of actions to ensure that 
CCI under-pin and is built into 
everything the Council does.  
 
It will help to align and co-ordinate 
activity, identify the key principles 
which should underpin CCI and 
ensure that the results of 
consultation are used effectively, 
enabling the Council to approach 
CCI in a co-ordinated and 
consistent manner.   
 
WHY HAVE A FRAMEWORK? 
 
The Council is involved in a wide 
and growing range of CCI activities. 
 
It can point to significant progress 
and there are many examples of 
good practice already that are 
delivering better and improved 
services. These include: 
 

• In 2001 the Council 
developed a Citizen’s Panel, 
Rotherham Reach out.  It 
has a panel of about 1,800 

people who the Council 
regularly consults on a wide 
range of issues. The findings 
have helped develop and 
improve services and 
policies and have been 
consistently praised in 
government inspections. 

 
• A strategic consultation plan 

and database have been 
developed to record and 
disseminate previous, 
current and forthcoming 
major consultations.  These 
help to plan consultation, the 
sharing of results and avoid 
‘over consulting’. 

 
• A Consultation Good 

Practice Guide has been 
introduced which contains 
practical help and advice 
and has been identified as 
‘good practice’ by the Audit 
Commission. 

 
• The Rotherham Compact 

sets out how RMBC will 
involve and consult with the 
voluntary and community 
sector. It has recently 
received a commendation 
from the Yorkshire and 
Humberside Government 
Office.  

 
• The Library Service gained 

Charter Mark Status for their 
involvement of BME 
communities in the shaping 
and delivery of library 
services.  

 
• The Council has just 

received Beacon Council 
status for the ‘Valuing 
People’ theme. The council 
funds high levels of 
advocacy to make sure that 

Page 19



the voices of people with 
learning disabilities are 
heard throughout the 
council. 

 
• The Maltby Community Plan 

received an award for 
excellent partnership 
working between the 
community and agencies in 
the Maltby area. 

 
The Council in its Consultation and 
Community Involvement Position 
Statements also identified the 
following areas for improvement: 
 

• Strengthen mechanisms so 
that people who are 
participating can see the 
results of their contribution is 
having an influence on 
decisions, policy and service 
development 

 
• Improve and make more 

transparent the planning and 
timing of CCI 

 
• Strengthen the links 

between CCI and decision 
making, ensuring that 
exercises relate to a 
decision that the Council is 
intending to make and that 
can be influenced by the 
results of that activity 

 
• Strengthen structures and 

procedures to share the 
results of CCI across 
Programme Areas and with 
Members and partners 

 
• Improve structures to ensure 

that those taking part in CCI 
are representative and 
inclusive 

 

• Enhance the evaluation and 
performance management 
of CCI, and that service and 
policy developments are 
being achieved as a result. 

 
The Framework seeks to maintain 
and enhance the good progress 
made and take forward the 
identified areas of improvement. 
 
In doing this it will make an 
important contribution to our 
improvement plan and our ambition 
to be an Excellent and inclusive 
Council. 
 
It will also support wider policy and 
service delivery such as the 
Council’s Corporate Equality 
Strategy and Action Plan and the 
Race Equality Scheme. 
 
THE FRAMEWORK 
 
The Framework provides a 
systematic, practical guide to 
ensure that we involve and consult 
communities in a way that is co-
ordinated, consistent, coherent and 
constructive: 
 

• Co-ordinated to make the 
best use of skill and 
resources, be cost effective, 
avoid duplication and 
‘consultation fatigue’ and 
share information, expertise 
and best practice 

 
• Consistently to a high 

standard, shapes policy and 
service delivery, makes best 
use of outcomes, is 
representative and actively 
seeks to engage all 
communities including 
marginalised and excluded 
communities 

 

Page 20



• Coherent to ensure that 
there is a clear need and 
rationale for CCI and this it 
is proportionate to the task 
in hand, appropriate and 
timely 

 
• Constructive in that it 

directly influences policies, 
service improvement and 
increases community 
satisfaction and leadership 

 
It will also make an important 
contribution to enabling a culture in 
the Council where involvement and 
consultation across the 
communities in Rotherham is 
encouraged, recognised and 
utilised in improving Council 
services. 
 
The Framework is the result of 
detailed analysis and research, and 
draws extensively on best practice 
particularly the work of the Audit 
Commission and other local 
authorities. It has been developed 
against a national, regional and 
local policy context which continues 
to prioritise CCI.  As the Audit 
Commission has stated:  
 
“Where user focus works, the 
positive benefits for the council 
have been  increased from user 
engagement, greater trust between 
individuals and councils and a 
greater sense of ownership of  
services by users and a willingness 
to participate among citizens”1.  
 
The Framework is not intended to 
replace existing work and good 
practice, such as the Council’s 
Good Practice Guide to 

                                            
1 (2003) User focus and citizen 
engagement, Audit Commission 

Consultation but builds on and 
refines this. 
 
It is a working document and, as 
such, will be constantly monitored 
and changed in light of experience 
and developments.   
 
It is divided into two main parts.  
The first part sets out the context 
and the council’s approach to CCI. 
 
The second part sets out the 
specific areas of activity required to 
achieve the required improvements 
in CCI. 
 
Initially a Council document it is 
intended to share and develop with 
partners, and be eventually 
extended to a joint Partnership 
Framework subject to LSP 
approval (with shared aims and 
standards).  The Local Area 
Agreement includes an objective to 
develop the Framework into a 
partnership document. 
 
The Council has already developed 
CCI Position Statements.  Each 
statement examines the 
effectiveness of the Council’s 
approach to CCI, and makes 
recommendations on how these 
can be improved.  The findings of 
these Position Statements have 
influenced the Framework. 
 
WHY CONSULT AND INVOLVE 
COMMUNITIES? 
 
There are many reasons why we 
should consult and involve citizens 
and service users, including to: 
Improve the delivery of services by 
enabling communities to say how 
they need to be improved: 

• Develop participatory 
decision making that helps 
Communities, Members and 

Page 21



Partner agencies set 
priorities; 

• Develop and test the impact 
of possible decisions, ideas 
and policies;  

• Promote and develop 
democratic processes and 
councillors community 
leadership role; 

• Widen ownership of issues 
and decisions; 

• Encourage greater 
understanding of what the 
council is aiming to do and 
what it achieves; 

• Raise awareness of  Council 
services  

• Develop the capacity of 
communities and service 
users to get involved in 
shaping and delivery of 
council and other public 
sector services and 
empower communities to 
develop their own areas and 
respond to problems. This 
includes: 

• Promoting equality and good 
community relations;  

• Developing effective 
communication mechanisms 
to provide information to 
communities on how they 
can be involved and 
consulted; 

• Develop advances in 
technology e.g. online 
consultation through the 
Council’s website and text 
messaging, use of digital TV 
and phone conferencing to 
offer greater  
opportunities for 
communities to become 
involved.  

 
WHAT IS COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT AND 
CONSULTATION? 
 

The terms CCI are often used inter-
changeably and are both similar in 
aiming to offer a means by which 
communities can be involved in 
decision making which has an 
influence on prioritisation, 
investment, service planning, 
delivery and evaluation. 
 
There are important differences 
between the two: 
 
Consultation is asking people for 
advice, asking what they think  
about a particular service area or a  
strategy, or asking what their needs  
are and what can be done with  
them e.g. Reach out panel  
(citizen’s panel), focus groups and  
surveys etc. 
 
Involvement concerns identifying 
ways in that people feel they are 
part of a decision making process 
so that they can make a real 
difference to what is decided and 
have ownership of the issues e.g. 
Area Assemblies, Scrutiny Panels 
and Community Planning etc. 
 
Both consultation and involvement 
are important and need to be used 
depending on the objective of the 
issue in question.  
 
Increasingly the Council is moving 
from consultation to community 
involvement. As the same groups 
are being consulted on a regular 
basis, structures are being set up 
to encourage involvement from 
communities which can meet 
regularly with officers and members 
to discuss areas of common 
interest including through Area 
Assemblies and structures such as 
ROPES (Rotherham Older People 
Experiences of Services) and 
Speak Out which involves people 

Page 22



with learning disabilities for 
example.   
 
This offers a more effective and 
systematic way of involving people 
in decision making. 
 
The degree to which people are 
involved will vary for each 
consultation and involvement 
activity. 
 
Some of the things that could affect 
the level of involvement are: 

• how much time is needed 
from the participants; 

• how much time is needed for 
the officers to undertake the 
work and; 

• the reason the consultation 
is being carried out e.g. to 
improve services. 

• how much local people are 
interested in being informed 
and involved about the 
issue.  

Page 23



 7

The model below shows the differing levels of involvement that can take 
place: 
 

 
 
INFORMATION 
 
Informing people of what you want  
to do or have already done.  
 
CONSULTATION 
 
Asking people for advice,  
for example asking what they think  
about a particular service area or a  
strategy or asking what their needs  
are and what can be done about  
them e.g. postal survey. 

 
PARTICIPATION 
 
Asking people to work with RMBC  
to help decide what to do and  
encourage them to take part e.g. 
Scrutiny Panels. 
 
EMPOWERMENT  
 
Giving people ownership of the  
decisions and supporting them to  
develop and carry out their own  

    

 
PARTICIPATION 

 
CONSULTATION 

 
INFORMATION 

HIGH INVOLVEMENT 

LOW INVOLVEMENT 

EMPOWERMENT 

Page 24



 8

plans e.g. Community Planning and  
Area Assemblies. 
 
CCI can be grouped under three 
main headings: 
 

1. Statutory consultation – 
e.g. Local Development 
Framework and Crime and 
Disorder Strategy 

 
2. Consultation where the 

Authority has chosen to 
ask questions – e.g. 
through community 

planning, to inform funding 
programmes, the Employee 
Opinion Survey, Reach out - 
the Borough’s Citizen’s 
Panel and the Council’s 
Staff Opinion Survey. 

 
3. Ongoing CCI as an 

integrated part of service 
delivery – e.g. assessment 
and care management in 
Social Services and Joint 
Commissioning. 

 
 

 

Page 25



 9

STATEMENT OF GUIDING 
PRINCIPLES FOR COMMUNITY 
INVOLVEMENT & 
CONSULTATION 
 
All CCI should follow best practice. 
These will help to ensure that the 
council consistently applies a 
common and high standard for 
consulting and involving people 
and communities. 
 
1. Representativeness 
 
It is important to ensure that CCI is 
representative of all communities 
as appropriate:  

• Understand Rotherham’s 
communities, their 
composition, future trends, 
needs and priorities 

• Recognise that communities 
can be defined in a number 
of ways, the most obvious of 
which is geography, but can 
also be members of 
communities of interest e.g. 
BME,  
Older People, 
and Young People etc.  

• Use a variety of methods to 
reflect the variety of 
community patterns, and 
because that the willingness 
to engage will vary. 

• Consider the needs of 
different groups such as 
disabled people, rural 
communities or black and 
minority ethnic communities.  

• For some there maybe 
particular barriers such as 
language, cultural, lack of 
disabled access and for 
others there are potential 
problems with the style of 
CCI.  

 
 
3.  Clarity of purpose 

If we want to achieve the most from 
CCI, then we need to be clear 
about what we are seeking to 
achieve: 

• Be clear about the aim of the 
work and what impact it will 
have on services and 
policies. 

• Agree how the results will be 
considered and  

• Ensure that you understand 
the views of communities. 

• Be clear how results will 
influence council services 
and priorities. 

 
4. Communicating, Consulting 

and Involving in appropriate 
ways: 

 
The means, by which we 
communicate, consult and involve 
our citizens and users can 
contribute to CCI: 

• Use a combination of 
approaches that enable 
communities to 
communicate with the 
Council at a time and in a 
manner that suits them. 

• Should not solely rely on 
traditional ‘paper based’ 
consultation methods and 
always look to broaden the 
range of consultation 
channels such as e-
communication, citizen’s 
juries, and area based 
panels and ward surveys. 

• Phrasing the questions in a 
way that it is easy to 
understand and do not give 
biased answers. 

• Uses a robust sample which 
is important to give reliable 
results.  

• The council should take 
responsibility are finding 
ways around the barriers. 
This can be overcome by 

Page 26



 10

conducting focus groups, 
carrying out in-depth 
interviews, by providing 
material in appropriate 
formats E.g. large print, 
community languages, plain 
English as opposed to 
Jargon or on tape or by 
providing interpreters or 
signers. 

  
5.  Feedback 
 
The key to carrying out effective 
CCI is to listen to the messages we 
receive and respond.   Feedback to 
participants on consultation should 
be: 

• Provided in a suitable format 
for the service user and 
citizens. 

• Simple and comprehensive 
and NO jargon. 

• Short and to the point. 
• Presented clearly. 
• Interesting and relevant. 
• Be honest and explain why a 

certain course of action has 
been decided or 
recommended. 

• Feedback can be using 
publications such as leaflets 
or the Rotherham Council 
Matters or to write directly to 
people who have 
participated. 

 
6. Delivers change and 

improved outcomes 
 

Ensures that CCI results in 
positive change and better 
services by: 

• Ensuring that the results are 
Incorporated into policies, 
strategies and service 
delivery  

• Monitoring and evaluating 
the impact of CCI activities 
to measure how it has fed 

into service planning and 
delivery.   

• Ensuring that we have 
communicated what we 
have learnt and done to 
members, officers and 
communities through 
newsletters, web-site. 

 
7. Capacity and Resources 
 
It is essential that those 
responsible for facilitating 
involvement and carrying out 
consultation activities have the 
knowledge, skills and resources to 
do it well by: 

• Increasing the capacity of 
communities to take part in 
decision making. 

• Ensuring that officers and 
members have access to 
advice, training, resources 
and support as well as 
having the knowledge and 
skills to undertake effective 
CCI. 

 

Page 27



 11

HOW WE WILL DELIVER THIS FRAMEWORK 
 
To meet the aims of the Framework we have identified five priority areas for 
improvement.   
 
 
1. Improving quality, 
effectiveness and 
coordination of CCI  

Continue to improve the quality and 
coordination of consultation and community 
involvement by Rotherham MBC 

2. Raise awareness of the 
principles of effective 
consultation and 
community involvement 

Raise awareness of the principles of effective 
consultation and community involvement and 
ensure staff and members have the training 
and support they need. 

3. Ensure that all 
communities are involved 

Ensure that all communities are involved in the 
planning and provision of services and policies 
to meet their needs 

4. Service  and Policy 
Improvement 

Ensure that consultation and community 
involvement shapes and influence service and 
policies 

5. Performance    
Management 

Improve satisfaction with consultation and 
community involvement, and evaluate the 
impact  

Page 28



 
12

 

  Ev
al

ua
tin

g 
an

d 
R

ev
ie

w
in

g 
th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 
 Th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k 

is
 a

 w
or

ki
ng

 d
oc

um
en

t, 
an

d 
w

ill 
be

 re
vi

ew
ed

 e
ve

ry
 y

ea
r. 

 In
 o

rd
er

 to
 e

va
lu

at
e 

its
 im

pa
ct

 th
e 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
in

di
ca

to
rs

 w
ill 

be
 u

se
d.

 
 1.

 
%

 s
at

is
fie

d 
w

ith
 th

ei
r l

oc
al

 a
re

a 
as

 a
 p

la
ce

 to
 li

ve
 

2.
 

%
 s

at
is

fie
d 

w
ith

 th
e 

ov
er

al
l s

er
vi

ce
 

3.
 

%
 o

f p
eo

pl
e 

w
ho

 c
on

si
de

r t
he

y 
ar

e 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 d
ec

is
io

n 
m

ak
in

g 
4.

 
%

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 fe

el
 th

ei
r v

ie
w

s 
ar

e 
ta

ke
n 

no
tic

e 
of

 
5.

 
%

 o
f p

eo
pl

e 
w

ho
 fe

el
 th

ey
 c

an
 in

flu
en

ce
 d

ec
is

io
ns

 in
 th

ei
r l

oc
al

 a
re

a 
 D

et
ai

l T
ar

ge
ts

 to
 b

e 
ad

de
d 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
th

e 
re

le
as

e 
of

 th
e 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 S

ur
ve

y 
re

su
lts

 in
 e

ar
ly

 M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

 
 

Page 29



 
13

 

C
C

I A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 
 An

 A
ct

io
n 

Pl
an

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 w

hi
ch

 d
et

ai
ls

 th
e 

ke
y 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 a
nd

 K
ey

 A
ct

io
ns

 th
at

 a
re

 n
ee

de
d 

to
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
Fr

am
ew

or
k.

 T
he

se
 a

re
 b

as
ed

 a
ro

un
d 

th
e 

5 
th

em
es

 id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

 W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

Im
pr

ov
in

g 
qu

al
ity

, 
ef

fe
ct

iv
en

es
s 

an
d 

co
or

di
na

tio
n 

of
 C

C
I 

Pr
od

uc
e 

an
d 

D
is

se
m

in
at

e 
 a

 T
oo

lk
it 

to
 C

C
I  

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r, 
(C

XO
) 

To
ol

ki
t P

ro
du

ce
d 

M
ay

 
20

06
 a

nd
 

di
ss

em
in

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

06
/0

7 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 T
oo

lk
it.

 
 St

af
f a

w
ar

en
es

s 
of

 
To

ol
ki

t t
o 

be
 m

ea
su

re
d 

vi
a 

R
ea

ch
 In

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f s
ur

ve
y 

 
Pr

od
uc

e 
a 

qu
ar

te
rly

 
pl

an
 o

f m
aj

or
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t  

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r, 
(C

XO
) 

Fi
rs

t p
la

n 
pr

od
uc

ed
 

M
ay

 2
00

6,
 a

nd
 e

ve
ry

  
th

re
e 

m
on

th
s 

th
er

ea
fte

r 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
an

d 
ap

pr
ov

al
 o

f 4
 p

la
ns

 o
n 

a 
qu

ar
te

rly
 b

as
is

. 
 

 
In

tro
du

ce
 a

 C
C

I 
C

ha
rte

r t
ha

t s
et

s 
ou

ts
 

th
e 

qu
al

ity
 s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
ex

pe
ct

ed
  

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r/P
rin

ci
pa

l 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
r 

(C
XO

) 

C
ha

rte
r a

gr
ee

d 
in

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6 

an
d 

di
ss

em
in

at
io

n 
du

rin
g 

06
/0

7 
in

 tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
w

or
ks

ho
ps

. 

Pr
od

uc
tio

n 
of

 C
ha

rte
r. 

 St
af

f a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 

C
ha

rte
r t

o 
be

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

vi
a 

R
ea

ch
 In

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f 

su
rv

ey
 

Page 30



 
14

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

M
em

be
r C

C
I P

an
el

 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
r/P

rin
ci

pa
l 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
(C

XO
) 

O
n-

go
in

g 
  

At
te

nd
an

ce
 b

y 
El

ec
te

d 
M

em
be

rs
 

 N
um

be
r o

f m
ee

tin
gs

 
th

at
 to

ok
 p

la
ce

 
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 n
ew

 C
C

I 
of

fic
er

 g
ro

up
 th

at
 

br
in

gs
 to

ge
th

er
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
an

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t p
an

el
s 

 

Po
lic

y 
& 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
 

M
an

ag
er

 (C
XO

) 
Ju

ly
 2

00
6 

N
ew

 T
er

m
s 

of
 

R
ef

er
en

ce
 p

ro
du

ce
d 

an
d 

ag
re

ed
 b

y 
th

e 
gr

ou
p 

 M
ee

tin
gs

 o
n 

a 
m

on
th

ly
 

ba
si

s.
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 R

e-
m

od
el

 
Ar

ea
 A

ss
em

bl
ie

s 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
(N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s)
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
N

ew
 m

od
el

 a
gr

ee
d 

an
d 

de
ta

ile
d 

ar
ra

ng
em

en
ts

 in
 p

la
ce

  

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

fre
sh

 
R

ot
he

rh
am

 R
ea

ch
 o

ut
, 

th
e 

Bo
ro

ug
h’

s 
C

iti
ze

ns
 

Pa
ne

l 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
R

ef
re

sh
ed

 R
ea

ch
 o

ut
  

 Tw
o 

Su
rv

ey
s 

pe
r y

ea
r. 

1st
 s

ur
ve

y 
di

st
rib

ut
ed

 in
 

M
ay

 2
00

6.
 

Page 31



 
15

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

R
ea

ch
 In

 p
an

el
 (R

M
BC

 
Em

pl
oy

ee
 P

an
el

) 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

(R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

3 
su

rv
ey

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 in
 

20
06

 
1st

 s
ur

ve
y 

co
m

pl
et

ed
. 

 2 
su

rv
ey

s 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

. 
 R

es
po

ns
e 

ra
te

 
 

Pr
od

uc
e 

a 
jo

in
t c

ha
rte

r 
an

d 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 w
ith

 
To

w
n 

an
d 

Pa
ris

h 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 l

ea
de

rs
hi

p 
M

an
ag

er
 

(N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s)

 

Ap
ril

 2
00

6 
D

ra
ft 

ch
ar

te
r p

ro
du

ce
d 

 Fi
na

l C
ha

rte
r a

gr
ee

d 
by

 C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

Pa
rtn

er
s 

 
 In

cr
ea

se
 in

 n
um

be
r o

f 
Pa

ris
h/

To
w

n 
C

ou
nc

ils
 

ac
hi

ev
in

g 
qu

al
ity

 
Pa

ris
h 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
at

us
  

 
In

cr
ea

se
 p

ar
tic

ip
at

io
n 

fro
m

 p
ar

tn
er

 a
ge

nc
ie

s 
in

 A
re

a 
As

se
m

bl
ie

s,
 

Ar
ea

 P
la

ns
, 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

C
ha

rte
rs

 a
nd

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
(N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s)
 

Ju
ly

 2
00

6 
Pa

rti
ci

pa
tio

n 
by

 k
ey

 
st

ak
eh

ol
de

rs
 

  

Page 32



 
16

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
D

ev
el

op
 7

 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
C

ha
rte

rs
 u

si
ng

 
in

te
llig

en
ce

 fr
om

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 P

la
nn

in
g 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

re
si

de
nt

s 
ar

e 
at

 th
e 

he
ar

t o
f d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

th
ey

 re
-

sh
ap

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
de

liv
er

y 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t 

M
an

ag
er

 
(N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

s)
 

Ap
ril

 2
00

6 
D

ra
ft 

C
ha

rte
rs

 
pr

od
uc

ed
 

 

 
Ag

re
ei

ng
 a

nd
 

im
pl

em
en

tin
g 

a 
re

vi
ew

ed
 R

ot
he

rh
am

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t S

tra
te

gy
 

(C
D

S)
 a

cr
os

s 
pa

rtn
er

 
ag

en
ci

es
, p

ro
vi

di
ng

 a
 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
to

 a
ss

is
t 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t  
 

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 

(N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s)

 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

St
ra

te
gy

 
in

 p
la

ce
 

Page 33



 
17

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

C
us

to
m

er
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

C
en

tre
s 

ac
ro

ss
 th

e 
bo

ro
ug

h 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

(R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
8 

Es
ta

bl
is

h 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
C

en
tre

s 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

bo
ro

ug
h 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 re

vi
se

 
C

ou
nc

il 
C

us
to

m
er

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
St

an
da

rd
s 

ba
se

d 
on

 C
us

to
m

er
 

ne
ed

s 
an

d 
as

pi
ra

tio
ns

 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 

(R
es

ou
rc

es
) 

Ju
ne

 2
00

6 
C

us
to

m
er

 S
er

vi
ce

 
St

an
da

rd
s 

in
 p

la
ce

 
 Fa

ll 
in

 th
e 

nu
m

be
r o

f 
cu

st
om

er
 c

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
 In

cr
ea

se
d 

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 C
us

to
m

er
 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
R

ai
se

 a
w

ar
en

es
s 

of
 

th
e 

pr
in

ci
pl

es
 o

f 
ef

fe
ct

iv
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

an
d 

co
m

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

Pr
om

ot
e 

th
e 

C
C

I  
To

ol
ki

t a
nd

 e
ns

ur
e 

th
at

 
it 

is
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

to
 a

ll 
em

pl
oy

ee
s 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

Ag
re

ed
 a

nd
 L

au
nc

he
d 

 
in

 M
ay

 2
00

6 
 Av

ai
la

bl
e 

on
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
W

eb
si

te
 in

 
M

ay
 2

00
6.

 

N
o 

of
 h

its
 o

n 
In

tra
ne

t 
 M

ea
su

re
 th

e 
us

ag
e 

fro
m

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

in
te

rn
al

 R
ea

ch
-in

 
pa

ne
l 

Page 34



 
18

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
In

tro
du

ce
 a

nd
 p

ro
m

ot
e 

C
C

I t
ra

in
in

g 
ev

en
ts

 
ai

m
ed

 a
t C

ou
nc

il 
st

af
f 

an
d 

M
em

be
rs

 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
r/ 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r/H
ea

d 
of

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
an

d 
M

em
be

r 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t (

C
XO

) 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

an
d 

th
en

 
co

nt
in

ue
d 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
  

N
um

be
r o

f T
ra

in
in

g 
se

ss
io

ns
 w

ith
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 

an
d 

m
em

be
rs

 
un

de
rta

ke
n 

on
 a

n 
an

nu
al

 b
as

is
. 

 N
o 

of
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

m
em

be
rs

 w
ho

 h
av

e 
re

ce
iv

ed
 tr

ai
ni

ng
. 

 
En

co
ur

ag
e 

in
no

va
tiv

e 
an

d 
cr

ea
tiv

e 
m

et
ho

ds
 

of
 C

C
I 

Ea
ch

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ar
ea

 
C

C
I L

ea
d 

O
n-

go
in

g 
 Ex

er
ci

se
s 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 in
 

An
nu

al
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
by

 
en

d 
of

 2
00

6 

N
um

be
r o

f i
nn

ov
at

iv
e 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

s 
ca

pt
ur

ed
 th

ro
ug

h 
th

e 
An

nu
al

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

Pl
an

 

 
Id

en
tif

y 
tra

in
in

g 
ne

ed
s 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

of
fic

er
 C

C
I 

G
ro

up
 a

nd
 M

em
be

r 
C

C
I G

ro
up

 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
In

vo
lv

em
en

t 
O

ffi
ce

r/ 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
r (

C
XO

) 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

an
d 

on
-

go
in

g 
 

 R
ep

or
t p

ro
du

ce
d 

on
 

tra
in

in
g 

ne
ed

s 
in

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 N
ee

ds
 

As
se

ss
m

en
t 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

Page 35



 
19

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 

m
et

ho
ds

 o
f c

ap
tu

rin
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

da
ta

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il 

an
d 

pr
od

uc
e 

ca
se

 s
tu

di
es

 
of

 g
oo

d 
pr

ac
tic

e.
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l 
O

ffi
ce

r, 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t (
C

XO
) 

O
n-

go
in

g 
N

um
be

r o
f c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
s 

th
at

 h
av

e 
di

re
ct

ly
 in

flu
en

ce
 

se
rv

ic
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 a
nd

 
de

liv
er

y 
an

d 
in

cl
ud

ed
 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
ns

. 
 

R
ef

re
sh

 a
nd

 d
ev

el
op

 
th

e 
C

ou
nc

il’s
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

C
I  

W
eb

si
te

 a
nd

 th
e 

in
tra

ne
t-s

ite
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

gu
id

an
ce

 o
n 

m
et

ho
ds

 
of

 C
C

I 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

O
ffi

ce
r (

C
XO

) 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
W

eb
si

te
 p

ag
e 

an
d 

In
tra

ne
t p

ag
e 

in
 

op
er

at
io

n.
 

En
su

re
 th

at
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 a

re
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 

R
ev

ie
w

 a
nd

 e
va

lu
at

e 
th

e 
co

un
ci

l’s
 a

pp
ro

ac
h 

to
 C

C
I w

ith
 v

ul
ne

ra
bl

e 
an

d 
m

in
or

ity
 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 w
ith

 a
 

pa
rti

cu
la

r f
oc

us
 o

n 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 th

e 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 
R

en
ew

al
 S

tra
te

gy
 

 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l C
om

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
(C

XO
) 

M
ay

 2
00

6 
an

d 
on

-
go

in
g 

In
cr

ea
se

d 
an

d 
m

or
e 

ef
fe

ct
iv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t 
w

ith
 th

e 
4 

pr
io

rit
y 

co
m

m
un

iti
es

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 th
e 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 

R
en

ew
al

 S
tra

te
gy

 
w

hi
ch

 a
re

: 
D

is
ab

le
d 

Pe
op

le
 a

nd
 

C
ar

er
s.

 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

C
ar

er
s.

 
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 

Page 36



 
20

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

Pe
op

le
 

BM
E 

C
om

m
un

iti
es

 a
nd

ta
rg

et
 c

om
m

un
iti

es
 o

f 
pl

ac
e 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 B
or

ou
gh

 
W

id
e 

M
ul

ti-
Ag

en
cy

 
O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
Fo

ru
m

 

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

(S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6 

An
 O

ld
er

 P
eo

pl
e’

s 
Fo

ru
m

 e
st

ab
lis

he
d 

 
 N

um
be

r o
f o

ld
er

 
pe

op
le

 in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 th

e 
Fo

ru
m

 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 e
ng

ag
em

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 

H
ea

d 
of

 A
du

lt 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

(S
oc

ia
l S

er
vi

ce
s)

 
M

ap
pi

ng
 E

xe
rc

is
e 

of
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

Ju
ne

 
20

06
. 

 D
is

ab
ilit

y 
Eq

ua
lit

y 
Sc

he
m

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 2
00

6.
 

M
ap

pi
ng

 E
xe

rc
is

e 
co

m
pl

et
ed

 o
f  

en
ga

ge
m

en
t 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

w
ith

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

eo
pl

e-
co

m
pl

et
ed

 
 D

is
ab

ilit
y 

Eq
ua

lit
y 

Sc
he

m
e 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 

w
ith

 3
 y

ea
r a

ct
io

n 
pl

an
 

w
ith

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

 
in

vo
lv

ed
 in

 th
e 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

f t
he

 
Sc

he
m

e-
 D

ec
em

be
r 

Page 37



 
21

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

20
06

 

 
Es

ta
bl

is
h 

a 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

fra
m

ew
or

k 
fo

r g
iv

in
g 

vo
ic

e 
an

d 
in

flu
en

ce
 to

 
ch

ild
re

n,
 y

ou
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

fa
m

ilie
s.

   
 

So
ni

a 
Sh

ar
p,

 
Ex

ec
ut

iv
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 
(C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
Pe

op
le

’s
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

In
iti

al
 p

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

to
 

C
M

T,
 D

ec
em

be
r 2

00
5.

 
Ad

op
tio

n,
 J

an
 2

00
6.

 

Ad
op

tio
n 

of
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
 a

nd
 in

iti
al

 
ac

tio
n 

pl
an

 

 
En

su
rin

g 
th

at
 th

e 
C

om
m

un
ity

 P
la

nn
in

g 
pr

oc
es

s 
de

si
gn

s 
an

d 
sh

ap
es

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
w

hi
ch

 
m

ee
t t

he
 d

iv
er

se
 

ne
ed

s 
of

 th
e 

pe
op

le
 o

f 
R

ot
he

rh
am

  

Pa
rtn

er
sh

ip
 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
M

an
ag

er
 

(N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
s)

 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

Ad
op

tio
n 

an
d 

im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
re

vi
se

d 
co

m
m

un
ity

 
pl

an
ni

ng
  

 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t a

nd
 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 th
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t/C

on
su

lta
ti

on
 a

nd
 P

ol
ic

y 
Ap

pr
ai

sa
l C

od
e 

of
 

Pr
ac

tic
e-

 R
ot

he
rh

am
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
(C

XO
) 

Im
pl

em
en

ta
tio

n 
of

 
Ac

tio
n 

Pl
an

 b
eg

in
s 

Ap
ril

 2
00

6 

Ac
tio

ns
 in

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 

as
se

ss
m

en
t d

oc
um

en
t 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 fo

r t
he

 C
C

I 
an

d 
Po

lic
y 

Ap
pr

ai
sa

l 
C

od
e 

of
 P

ra
ct

ic
e 

Page 38



 
22

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

C
om

pa
ct

 

 
D

ev
el

op
 a

 L
oc

al
 A

re
a 

Ag
re

em
en

ts
 w

hi
ch

 
in

cl
ud

es
 a

 c
ut

tin
g 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
to

 in
cr

ea
se

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 a
nd

 
se

rv
ic

e-
us

er
 

en
ga

ge
m

en
t a

nd
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t, 

su
pp

or
tin

g 
th

e 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t o
f 

vo
lu

nt
ee

rin
g,

 th
us

 
en

ab
lin

g 
gr

ea
te

r l
oc

al
 

in
flu

en
ce

 in
 d

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y.

 

Le
e 

Ad
am

s 
(C

XO
)/V

AR
 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t w

ill 
be

 
m

ea
su

re
d 

ag
ai

ns
t 

ta
rg

et
s 

an
d 

m
ile

st
on

es
. 

Page 39



 
23

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
In

tro
du

ce
 a

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 

Li
fe

 S
ur

ve
y 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

O
ffi

ce
r (

C
XO

) 
M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 
D

ev
el

op
 a

nd
 c

on
du

ct
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 S

ur
ve

y 
 

 Fi
rs

t Q
ua

lit
y 

O
f L

ife
 

Su
rv

ey
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
in

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 2

00
6 

 Su
rv

ey
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

n 
on

 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

.  
 Sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
le

ve
ls

 
m

on
ito

re
d 

an
d 

qu
al

ity
 

of
 li

fe
 s

ur
ve

y 
in

 p
la

ce
. 

 
D

ev
el

op
 p

ro
fil

es
 o

n 
ta

rg
et

 c
om

m
un

iti
es

 o
f 

in
te

re
st

 a
nd

 p
la

ce
 to

 
he

lp
 u

nd
er

st
an

d 
th

ei
r 

co
m

po
si

tio
n,

 fu
tu

re
 

tre
nd

s,
 n

ee
ds

 a
nd

 
pr

io
rit

ie
s 

an
d 

ho
w

 th
ey

 
w

an
t t

o 
be

 c
on

su
lte

d 
an

d 
in

vo
lv

ed
. 

C
or

po
ra

te
 R

es
ea

rc
h 

O
ffi

ce
r (

C
XO

) 
20

 c
om

m
un

ity
 p

ro
fil

es
 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Ap

ril
 

20
07

 
 Fi

rs
t w

av
e 

in
 A

pr
il 

20
06

 
  

N
um

be
r o

f c
om

m
un

ity
 

pr
of

ile
s 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
 Ex

te
nt

 to
 w

hi
ch

 th
ey

 
ar

e 
us

ed
 to

 in
flu

en
ce

 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

se
rv

ic
e 

de
liv

er
y 

  

Page 40



 
24

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 

m
ec

ha
ni

sm
s 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
hi

gh
er

 v
ot

es
 a

re
 

re
gi

st
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

lo
ca

l 
el

ec
tio

ns
 

H
ea

d 
of

 L
eg

al
 a

nd
 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

H
ea

d 
of

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 

M
ay

 2
00

7 
an

d 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

 
In

cr
ea

se
 th

e 
tu

rn
 o

ut
 

ra
te

 a
t l

oc
al

 e
le

ct
io

ns
, 

10
%

 in
cr

ea
se

 b
y 

20
10

 
  

Se
rv

ic
e 

an
d 

po
lic

y 
Im

pr
ov

em
en

t 
M

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
st

ra
te

gi
c 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

da
ta

ba
se

 
to

 h
el

p 
co

lla
te

 a
nd

 
di

ss
em

in
at

e 
fin

di
ng

s 
an

d 
go

od
 p

ra
ct

ic
e 

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

an
d 

th
en

 
m

ai
nt

ai
n 

an
d 

en
ha

nc
e 

th
e 

co
rp

or
at

e 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
da

ta
ba

se
  

1 
ne

w
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
D

at
ab

as
e 

up
 a

nd
 

ru
nn

in
g 

an
d 

re
gu

la
rly

 
up

da
te

d 
an

d 
re

vi
ew

ed
. 

 
W

or
k 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 
C

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 a

nd
 

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
Te

am
 to

 
pr

om
ot

e 
ho

w
 C

C
I h

as
 

in
flu

en
ce

d 
de

ci
si

on
s,

 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

nd
 p

ol
ic

ie
s 

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

M
ar

ch
 

20
07

 
an

d 
on

-
go

in
g 

Fi
nd

in
gs

 d
is

tri
bu

te
d 

th
ro

ug
h 

th
e 

in
te

rn
et

 
an

d 
C

ou
nc

il 
M

at
te

rs
 

ne
w

sl
et

te
r. 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 c

ur
re

nt
 

m
et

ho
ds

 o
f c

ap
tu

rin
g 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

da
ta

 
ac

ro
ss

 th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

R
ev

ie
w

 c
om

pl
et

ed
 b

y 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6 

D
ev

el
op

ed
 a

 m
or

e 
ro

bu
st

 a
nd

 S
M

AR
TE

R
 

sy
st

em
 to

 c
ap

tu
re

 th
e 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

of
 h

ow
  

se
rv

ic
es

 h
av

e 
be

en
 

im
pr

ov
ed

 a
s 

a 
re

su
lt 

of
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n,

  

Page 41



 
25

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 N
um

be
r o

f c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

ex
er

ci
se

s 
th

at
 h

av
e 

di
re

ct
ly

 in
flu

en
ce

s 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
ni

ng
 a

nd
 

de
liv

er
y.

 
 

In
tro

du
ce

 b
i-a

nn
ua

l 
re

vi
ew

 o
f s

tra
te

gi
c 

C
C

I 
C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
r (

C
XO

) 
Fi

rs
t r

ev
ie

w
 c

om
pl

et
ed

 
an

d 
ag

re
ed

 fo
r 

Se
pt

em
be

r 2
00

6 

Th
e 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

An
nu

al
 R

ev
ie

w
 w

ill 
m

on
ito

r p
ro

gr
es

s 
ag

ai
ns

t e
ac

h 
po

lic
y 

an
d 

st
ra

te
gy

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t i
n 

re
la

tio
n 

to
 C

C
I. 

 
Ea

ch
 P

ro
gr

am
m

e 
Ar

ea
 

w
ill 

de
ve

lo
p 

an
 a

nn
ua

l 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
ho

w
 C

C
I 

ha
s 

in
fo

rm
ed

 
de

ci
si

on
s,

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
an

d 
po

lic
ie

s 

Ea
ch

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ar
ea

 
C

C
I L

ea
d 

St
at

em
en

ts
 to

 b
e 

de
ve

lo
pe

d 
by

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 2

00
6 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ca
pt

ur
ed

 
th

ro
ug

h 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

an
s 

an
d 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

da
ta

ba
se

 
Fi

nd
in

gs
 re

po
rte

d 
th

ro
ug

h 
w

eb
si

te
, 

in
tra

ne
t a

nd
 fe

ed
ba

ck
 

th
ro

ug
h 

ne
w

sl
et

te
rs

. 
 

Al
l S

er
vi

ce
 P

la
ns

 to
 

in
cl

ud
e 

a 
st

at
em

en
t o

n 
ho

w
 C

C
I h

as
 g

ui
de

d 
th

ei
r d

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

Ea
ch

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Ar
ea

 
C

C
I L

ea
d 

an
d 

Pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 a

nd
 

Q
ua

lit
y 

Te
am

 

N
ov

 2
00

6 
    

Pl
an

ni
ng

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
is

 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

fo
r H

ea
ds

 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

s.
 

  

Page 42



 
26

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

Ja
n 

20
06

 
     M

ar
ch

 2
00

6 

Pr
id

e 
in

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 
w

or
ks

ho
p 

do
ne

 w
ith

 
M

3 
M

an
ag

er
s 

w
hi

ch
 

in
cl

ud
ed

 c
om

m
un

ity
 

in
vo

lv
em

en
t 

 Al
l s

er
vi

ce
 p

la
ns

 a
re

 
ev

al
ua

te
d 

Pe
rf

or
m

an
ce

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
D

ev
el

op
 H

ea
r B

y 
R

ig
ht

 
(n

at
io

na
lly

 a
cc

re
di

te
d)

 
st

an
da

rd
s 

fo
r t

he
 

ac
tiv

e 
in

vo
lv

em
en

t o
f 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 

C
YP

 A
dv

is
or

 (
C

hi
ld

re
n 

an
d 

Yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

’s
 

se
rv

ic
es

) 

M
ay

 2
00

5 
Ac

hi
ev

ed
 H

ea
r B

y 
R

ig
ht

 s
ta

tu
s 

fo
r t

he
 

C
ou

nc
il 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
ch

ild
re

n 
an

d 
yo

un
g 

pe
op

le
 to

 p
ar

tic
ip

at
e 

in
 

de
ci

si
on

 m
ak

in
g 

to
 

im
pr

ov
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r 

ch
ild

re
n 

an
d 

yo
un

g 
pe

op
le

. 
 

St
an

da
rd

s 
fo

r C
C

I t
o 

be
 s

et
 o

ut
 in

 C
ha

rte
r 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
is

ed
 w

id
el

y 

C
or

po
ra

te
 C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
O

ffi
ce

r (
C

XO
) 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
6 

Av
ai

la
bl

e 
on

 w
eb

si
te

 
an

d 
in

tra
ne

t. 
 C

ha
rte

r a
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
us

er
s 

to
 c

ol
le

ct
 

fro
m

 a
ll 

th
e 

co
un

ci
l 

bu
ild

in
gs

 a
nd

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 c
en

tre
s 

in
 

R
ot

he
rh

am
. 

Page 43



 
27

 

W
ha

t d
o 

w
e 

w
an

t 
to

 d
o?

 
H

ow
 a

re
 w

e 
go

in
g 

to
 d

o 
it?

 
Le

ad
 O

ffi
ce

r?
 

B
y 

W
he

n?
 

H
ow

 w
ill

 w
e 

kn
ow

 
w

e 
ha

ve
 a

ch
ie

ve
d 

it?
 

 
An

nu
al

ly
 re

po
rt 

on
, 

an
d 

di
ss

em
in

at
e 

w
id

el
y,

 p
ro

gr
es

s 
on

 th
e 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 in

di
ca

to
rs

 
se

t o
ut

 in
 th

is
 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

M
an

ag
er

 (C
XO

) 
R

ep
or

t t
o 

M
em

be
r 

C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

G
ro

up
 b

y 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 

1s
t A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

an
d 

th
en

 
an

 a
nn

ua
l b

as
is

. 
 Fi

nd
in

gs
 d

is
tri

bu
te

d 
to

 
C

M
T 

an
d 

C
ab

in
et

 a
nd

 
th

e 
C

C
I O

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

M
em

be
rs

 g
ro

up
s.

 
 

Ev
al

ua
te

 th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
(C

XO
) 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
M

em
be

r 
C

on
su

lta
tio

n 
G

ro
up

 b
y 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
07

 

1s
t A

nn
ua

l R
ep

or
t 

do
ne

 b
y 

M
ar

ch
 2

00
7 

an
d 

th
en

 d
on

e 
on

 a
n 

an
nu

al
 b

as
is

. 
 

R
eg

ul
ar

 re
po

rts
 to

 
C

M
T,

 C
ab

in
et

, 
M

em
be

r C
C

I g
ro

up
, 

C
om

m
un

ity
 C

oh
es

io
n 

M
at

te
rs

 g
ro

up
 a

nd
 

D
em

oc
ra

tic
 R

en
ew

al
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

Pa
ne

l o
n 

th
e 

Fr
am

ew
or

k 
pr

og
re

ss
 

an
d 

im
pa

ct
 

Pr
in

ci
pa

l C
om

m
un

ity
 

In
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r 
(C

XO
) 

O
n-

go
in

g 
   

N
um

be
r o

f r
ep

or
ts

 
 M

em
be

r a
nd

 o
ffi

ce
r 

fe
ed

ba
ck

 
  R

ep
or

ts
 a

va
ila

bl
e 

on
 

th
e 

in
tra

ne
t. 

  
   

Page 44



 
28

 

W
ho

 to
 C

on
ta

ct
? 

  
Fo

r m
or

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
ab

ou
t t

he
 F

ra
m

ew
or

k 
an

d 
C

C
I a

re
as

 o
f w

or
k,

 p
le

as
e 

co
nt

ac
t: 

  
An

dr
ew

 T
ow

le
rto

n 
(P

ol
ic

y 
an

d 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

M
an

ag
er

) P
ol

ic
y 

an
d 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
Te

am
 

Te
l: 

(0
17

09
) 8

22
78

5 
Em

ai
l: 

an
dr

ew
.to

w
le

rto
n@

ro
th

er
ha

m
.g

ov
.u

k 
  

As
im

 M
un

ir 
(P

rin
ci

pa
l C

om
m

un
ity

 In
vo

lv
em

en
t O

ffi
ce

r) 
Po

lic
y 

an
d 

R
es

ea
rc

h 
Te

am
 

Te
l: 

(0
17

09
) 8

22
78

6 
Em

ai
l: 

as
im

.m
un

ir@
ro

th
er

ha
m

.g
ov

.u
k  

  
D

aw
n 

Pr
ic

e 
(C

or
po

ra
te

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

O
ffi

ce
r) 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

Te
am

 
Te

l: 
(0

17
09

) 8
22

78
3 

Em
ai

l: 
da

w
n.

pr
ic

e@
ro

th
er

ha
m

.g
ov

.u
k  

  
Sa

m
ee

ia
 L

uq
m

an
 (A

ss
is

ta
nt

 C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

an
d 

C
om

m
un

ity
 In

vo
lv

em
en

t O
ffi

ce
r) 

Po
lic

y 
an

d 
R

es
ea

rc
h 

Te
am

 
Te

l: 
(0

17
09

) 8
22

78
3 

Em
ai

l: 
sa

m
ee

ia
.lu

qm
an

@
ro

th
er

ha
m

.g
ov

.u
k  

 

Page 45



1 

 
 
 

1. Meeting: Community Cohesion Delegated Power 

2. Date: April 2006 

3. Title: Analysis of women in Rotherham 

4. Programme Area: Chief Executive’s Department 

 
 
5. Summary 
 
This report invites the Panel to consider the main findings from a report on the 
female population in Rotherham. The report represents a wider approach adopted by 
the Research and Policy Team to help develop a greater understanding of the needs 
and priorities of the many communities in Rotherham based on the community of 
interest groups identified in the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy. The findings will 
have implications for policy and service delivery.  
 
This report is the third in a series of reports which will be produced by the Research 
and Policy Team over the next twelve months. The Research and Policy team aim to 
produce ten reports over the next twelve months on the main (and diverse) 
communities of interest in the Borough. To date, two other reports have been 
completed; Older people and the Irish community.   Future report will cover Pakistani 
(inc Kashmiri), Black, Chinese, Indian, Other Asian, Other White (not British or Irish) 
and Mixed or Dual Heritage. 
 
6. Recommendations 
 
The Panel is asked to: 
 

1. Consider and discuss the main findings from the report as outlined in 
section 7 of this report 

2. Agree that the findings of the report be taken into account by 
Programme Areas in developing policies and services 

3. Agree that dissemination of the key findings to Programme Areas and 
interested partner agencies be undertaken. 

4. Note that this is the third in a series of reports to be developed by the 
Policy and Research Team looking at the needs and priorities of the 
main (and various) communities of Interest in the Borough. 

 
 
 

 

ROTHERHAM BOROUGH COUNCIL 

Agenda Item 8Page 46



2 

7. Proposals and Details 
 
Background 
The analysis of women in Rotherham is the third in a series of reports, which seeks 
to develop a greater understanding of Communities of Interest in Rotherham. Better 
information and Research is part of the Year Ahead commitment to further 
understand local needs in order to plan and deliver more effective services for local 
people in Rotherham. Its findings will be made widely available, and help to shape 
and inform services and policies by the Council and partners. 
 
The improvement of available data from various sources and the development of 
more sophisticated approaches to profiling through for example the Council's 
involvement in the Audit Commission's Area Pilot Profile have enabled the Policy 
and Research Team to develop a more in depth understanding of the needs and 
priorities of its many of its communities. 
 
Main Findings 
 
Demographic Characteristics 

• There are more women than men among the population of Rotherham. 
• The proportion of women in the older age groups is continuing to increase. 
• There are 3 times more women aged over 85 than men. 
• Women live longer than men in Rotherham but life expectancy for women in 

Rotherham is below the national average. 
 
 
Ethnicity and Religious Characteristics 

 
• A high proportion of women in Rotherham were born outside the UK in other 

European countries compared to men. 
• In Rotherham women outnumber men in the White, Mixed and Asian ethnic 

groups. 
• 8 out of 10 women living in Rotherham belong to a religious group. 

 
Crime 
 

• Women in Rotherham tend to be the most fearful of crime despite being the 
least victimised. 

 
 
Family and Living Characteristics 

 
• There is a higher than average proportion of women who are married or re-

married living in Rotherham. 
• Rotherham also has higher than average numbers of widowed women. 
• One third of all women living in Rotherham rent their house from the council. 
• Just over half of all women living in Rotherham own their own house, 

compared to nearly three quarters of men in the Borough. 
 

Page 47



3 

• 9 out of 10 lone parent households in the Borough are headed by women. 
• Households in the Borough with lone females aged over 85 has seen a 

significant increase in the last 15 years. 
 

 
Health Characteristics 

 
• Women in the Borough are living longer but for some the extra years of 

longevity are not healthy ones. 
• Female life expectancy in the Borough is 79.5 years of age and is increasing 
• Rotherham has higher than average numbers of women who are permanently 

sick or disabled. 
• 1 in 10 women in the Borough provide unpaid care for at least one hour per 

week. This is one of the highest rates in the country. 
• Women in Rotherham are more likely to be suffering from a Limiting Long 

Term Illness. 
 
Economic Characteristics 
 

• Rotherham has a higher than average number of women who are 
unemployed, looking after the home/family, retired or permanently sick or 
disabled compared to national averages. 

• Three times as many men than women claim Job Seekers Allowance in 
Rotherham 

• Women in Rotherham are above the national average in accessing Further 
education but below the national average in accessing Higher Education. 

• Average weekly earnings for women in Rotherham are £319.30. This is on 
average 27% less than their male counterparts. 

 
8. Finance 
 

There are no direct and significant financial implications with this report.   The 
study itself was completed within existing research budgets. 

 
9. Risks and Uncertainties 
 
It is essential that the findings from this report which identify the needs and priorities 
of this particular community in the Borough are used to help shape and inform 
services and policies by the council and partners. 
 
10. Policy and Performance Agenda Implications 
 
Developing more sophisticated approaches to profiling communities of interest 
enables the council to develop a more in depth understanding of the needs and 
priorities of its many communities. This sophisticated approach identifies and 
highlights any gaps in research and consultation relating to specific communities of 
Interest enabling bespoke targeting and consultation within these groups.  
 
Developing and implementing a coherent approach to research, consultation and 
intelligence is pivotal to a wider network of plans, strategies and initiatives such as 

Page 48



4 

the Neighbourhood Renewal Strategy, Chief Executive Service Plan, Local Area 
Agreement and The Audit Commissions Area Profiling Pilot project. Developing this 
approach to understanding the needs of our communities also contributes to the 
development of key strategic documents such as the Corporate Plan. It is envisaged 
that the report along with others that are developed in the future will play a key role 
in shaping and informing future policy and service delivery across the Borough and 
by all partners. 
 
11. Background Papers and Consultation 
 
The report has been developed following detailed analysis and desk based research. 
Guidance was also given through the Audit Commission’s Pilot Area profiling project. 
 
It is envisaged that this report along with future reports that are produced are 
disseminated across programme areas and key partner agencies. It is also 
envisaged that these reports will be made available to the voluntary, community and 
not for profit sectors and the public via the RMBC internet to support and maximise 
funding opportunities for specific communities of Interest in the Borough.  
 
It is hoped that the findings of this report will enable the council to establish and 
maintain effective ways to consult with communities of Interest and will drive forward 
community involvement and consultation in relation to policy and service delivery 
across the Borough. This report will be used as a tool to support and inform key 
strategies such as the developing Women’s Strategy. The report has received a 
great deal of interest and was utilised at the International Women’s Day event held at 
Rotherham College in March 2006. 
 
Contact Names:  
 
Lee Adams, Assistant Chief Executive, Chief Executives Office 
lee.adams@rotherham.gov.uk, tel:  82(2788) 
 
Miles Crompton, Research Co-ordinator, Chief Executives Office 
miles.crompton@rotherham.gov.uk, tel: 82(2763) 
 
Andrew Towlerton, Policy and Research Manager, Chief Executives Office 
andrew.towlerton@rotherham.gov.uk, tel: 82(2785) 
 
Catherine Dale, Research and Statistics Officer, Chief Executives Office 
Catherine.dale@rotherham.gov.uk, tel: 82(2763) 

Page 49



 - 1 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A profile of Women in Rotherham 
 

 
April 2006 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Report by 
 

Catherine Dale, Research Officer, & Matthew Woodward, Research Assistant 
 

Policy & Research, Chief Executives Office, Rotherham MBC 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 50



 - 2 - 

List of Contents  
 
 
Section 1  Introduction      Page 3  
    
 
Section 2   Local Context     Page 6 
     
 
Section 3  Summary of Older People in Rotherham Page 8 
  
 
Section 4   Demographic Characteristics   Page 9 
   
 
Section 5   Ethnicity and Religious Characteristics Page 15 
 
 
Section 6  Crime       Page 17 
 
 
Section 6   Family and Living Characteristics  Page 17 
  
 
Section 7  Health Characteristics    Page 19 
    
 
Section 8   Housing Characteristics    Page 20 
    
 
Section 9   Economic Characteristics   Page 21 
   
 
Section 10  Consultation     Page 23 
  
 
Section 11  Summary      Page 27 
   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 51



 - 3 - 

 
1. Introduction - National Context  
 
1.1 Background 
 
The analysis of women in Rotherham is the third in a series of reports, which 
seeks to develop a greater understanding of Communities of Interest in 
Rotherham. Its findings will be made widely available, and help to shape and 
inform services and policies by the Council and partners. 
 
This report represents a wider approach adopted by the Research and Policy 
Team in the Chief Executives Department of Rotherham MBC to help develop a 
greater understanding of the needs and priorities of the many communities in the 
Borough.  
 
The improvement of available data from various sources and the development of 
more sophisticated approaches to profiling through for example the Council's 
involvement in the Audit Commission's Area Pilot Profile have enabled the Policy 
and Research Team to develop a more in depth understanding of the needs and 
priorities of its many of its communities. 
 
The Office for National Statistics published a Social Focus on Women, in 1995, 
presenting a broad summary of statistics for the United Kingdom. A profile of 
women in Rotherham adopts a similar approach, presenting a picture of the lives 
of women in Rotherham today. Comparisons are given with men and total 
Borough averages where this is possible. Comparisons with national averages 
are included selectively to illustrate various similarities and differences. 
 

1.2 Demographic Characteristics 

Population: by age and sex, 2002 United Kingdom 

 

Page 52



 - 4 - 

    

 
More boys than girls are born each year but there are more women than men 
overall in the UK population: 30.3 million females compared with 28.9 million 
males in mid-2002.1 
 

 
The graph below shows that in 2002, the national average age of a woman was 
40.5 compared to 37.9 for men. By 2026, the average ages for women and men 
in the UK are predicted to be 43.9 and 42.0 respectively. 
 
Table 1.0 - Mean age of women and men: UK, 2002-2026 

 
  
1.2 Working age population 
 
The decrease in the number of young males living in the UK has implications for 
the composition of the working population in future years. The chart below shows 
that the number of women of working age will increase from 18 million in 2010 to 
nearly 20million in 2020.  
 
This is the decade during which the extension to the state retirement age for 
women from 60 to 65 years will be phased in.  The number of women is 
projected to overtake the number of men of working age in 2018. The overall 
numbers of females and males of working age are set to decline slightly from 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

                                                                          
1 ONS, Focus on Gender 

Page 53



 - 5 - 

Figure 1.2 - Working age projections, Government Actuary Department 2002 
 

 
 
The graph shows that nationally from the age of 22 women outnumber men. This 
is partly because of higher net in-migration among women than men in recent 
years. In addition, death rates from accidents and suicide are much higher for 
young men than for young women. This difference between the sexes increases 
through the 20s and 30s age groups, but is smaller again for those in their 40s. 
The gap narrows mainly due to higher net inward migration among men in the 
older working ages.  
 
For people in their late 50s and onwards, the difference between the sexes 
increases, as the death rates are greater among men than among women. This 
is most pronounced in the very elderly, as women tend to live longer than men. 
The Second World War has also had an impact on the number of men aged over 
80.  In 2002, there were three and half times as many women as men aged 90 or 
over.  
 
The pattern of women outnumbering men is projected to continue in the future, 
although the gap is expected to narrow as death rates among men continue to 
improve 
 
1.3 Ethnicity 
 
Nationally the ratio of men to women varies across the ethnic groups. There are 
more women than men in the White, Black and Indian groups in England and 
Wales. By contrast, there are more men than women in the Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi, Chinese, and Other groups. 
 

Page 54



 - 6 - 

In 2001, women who claimed asylum in their own right in the UK only 
represented about a fifth of the asylum seeking population in the UK.2   
 
1.4 Crime 
 
Men commit more crimes than women. In 2002 male offenders in England and 
Wales outnumbered female offenders by more than four to one.3 
 
Men outnumber women in all major crime categories. Between 85 and 95 per 
cent of offenders found guilty of burglary, robbery, drug offences, criminal 
damage or violence against the person are male. Although the number of 
offenders are relatively small, 98 per cent of people found guilty of, or cautioned 
for, sexual offences are male. Theft was the most commonly committed offence 
by women in 2002.  Men are more likely to be the victims of violent crime than 
women. 
 
Fear of crime is a major concern for both sexes. However, women tend to worry 
more about most types of crime, particularly violent crime even though men are 
most likely to become a victim of crime.  For both sexes, particularly women, 
there is an inverse perception around being a victim of crime. The fear of crime 
greatly outweighs the actual risk. Domestic violence is the only category of 
violence where the risks for women are higher than for men. Risks of stranger 
violence remain substantially greater for men than for women, with men four 
times more likely than women to suffer this form of attack. 
 
 
1.5 Family and Living Characteristics 
 
Nationally, around six out of ten men and women in the UK live in a couple. Men 
are more likely than women to be single (never married), while women are more 
likely than men to be divorced or widowed. There are over three times as many 
widows as widowers in the population as women tend to live longer than men. 
 
There has been a doubling in the proportion of households headed by a lone 
parent with dependent children in the UK since the early 1970s, to 6 per cent in 
2002. Up to the mid-1980s, a large part of the rise was due to divorce. More 
recently, the number of single, lone mothers has grown at a faster rate, because 
of the rise in the proportion of births outside marriage. Lone mothers headed the 
majority of lone parent families in spring 2002, with nine out of ten headed by a 
lone mother.4 
 
In 2001, a higher proportion of single men than single women were owner-
occupiers in Great Britain (54 and 40 per cent, respectively).  
 

                                                                          
2 Refugee Women’s Resource Project, Asylum Aid, 2003 
3 Criminal Statistics, England and Wales, 2001, Home Office 
4 ONS, Focus on Gender, 2002 

Page 55



 - 7 - 

Nearly half of lone mothers are single (never married). Lone parents receive a 
high priority for social sector housing and are more likely than any other type of 
household to be renting from this sector. Half of lone mothers with dependent 
children live in social sector housing. Lone mothers are more likely than lone 
fathers to be living in any sort of rented accommodation, while a higher 
proportion of lone fathers, who tend to be divorced, are owner-occupiers. 
 
On Census day 2001, there were two and half times as many women in 
residential care and nursing homes compared with men 
 
1.6 Health 
 
In 2001, the average life expectancy at birth of females born in the UK was 80 
years compared with 76 years for males. However, the gap is smaller in terms of 
the number of years they can expect to live in good health. Healthy life 
expectancy for women in 1999 averaged 69 years compared with 67 years for 
men. Consequently, while women can expect to live longer than men they are 
also more likely to have more years in poor health. 
 
Causes of death vary between the sexes. Cancers are now the most common 
cause of death in women and the second most common cause in men, 
accounting for only slightly fewer deaths in men than circulatory disease (which 
includes heart disease and stroke). However, as a result of greater falls in deaths 
from other illnesses, the proportion of deaths caused by cancer has risen. In 
2001, cancers were responsible for 28 per cent of male deaths in England and 
Wales and 24 per cent of female deaths, compared with 16 per cent among both 
males and females in 1951.5 
 
1.7 Economic 

Research shows that women still generally earn less than men in Great Britain, 
and according to the Equal Opportunities Commission are still decades away 
from achieving equality in the workplace. 

Since 1999, the gap between men’s and women’s average hourly earning has 
narrowed marginally. In 2003, women’s average hourly pay was 82 per cent of 
men’s, compared with 81 per cent in 2002 and 79 per cent in 1993.  Furthermore, 
in February 2006, the Women and Work Commission concluded that the gender 
pay gap is worse in Britain than anywhere in Europe.6 

 

 

 
                                                                          
5 ONS, Focus on gender 
6 Women and Equality Unit, 2006 

Page 56



 - 8 - 

The reasons for this pay gap are complex.  There are however a number of key 
factors. 

Women with children are less likely to be in work and more likely to work part 
time or take low paid work than those without children. For example, a 
Government commissioned report (Shaping a Fairer Future) concluded that 
women with child care responsibilities often take low paid part-time employment 
such as cleaning and caring below their skill level.  Additionally, Single mothers 
are in receipt of the highest level of benefits among all people of working age in 
2001/02, receiving 37 per cent of their total weekly income from benefits and 42 
per cent from earnings. 

Women also tend to be over-represented in those sectors of the economy that 
traditionally pay wage levels below the national average such as the service 
sector, and men in those sectors that traditionally have wage levels above the 
national average.  Women also tend to be generally under-represented in senior 
managerial and professional positions.  

1.8 Learning and Training 
 
Nationally over recent years, there has been an increase in the proportion of both 
young women and young men in the UK who gain two or more GCE A levels (or 
equivalent). This increase has been more marked among women. Between 
1992/93 and 2001/02 the proportion of women gaining this result more than 
doubled from 20 per cent to 43 per cent. Over the same period, the proportion of 
men increased from 18 per cent to 34 per cent. 
 
At ‘A’ level, women outperformed men in virtually all subject groups in 2000/01. 
With the exception of only General Studies, English Literature and some 
languages, a greater proportion of women than men achieved grades A-C. 
 
Women also outperform men in vocational qualifications - 29 per cent of young 
women in schools and colleges gained a distinction for their Advanced General 
National Vocational Qualification (GNVQ) in 2000/01, compared with 17 per cent 
of young men. Although Business was the most popular subject for both men and 
women taking an Advanced GNVQ, the next most popular subjects differed 
between the sexes. Twenty five per cent of women took Health and Social Care 
compared with 1 per cent of men, whereas 22 per cent of men took Information 
Technology compared with 4 per cent of women. 
 
Among those who took first degrees in 2002, men and women were almost 
equally likely to gain a first - 10 per cent of men compared with 9 per cent of 
women. However, a greater proportion of women achieved an upper second - 49 
per cent of women compared with 40 per cent of men. 
 
 
 

Page 57



 - 9 - 

 
 
2. Local Context Summary 
 
2.1 Population 
 

• There are more women than men among the population of Rotherham. 
 
• The proportion of women in the older age groups is continuing to 

increase. 
 

• There are 3 times more women aged over 85 than men. 
 

• Women live longer than men in Rotherham but life expectancy for 
women (and men) in Rotherham is below the national average. 

 
 
2.2 Ethnicity and religious characteristics 
 

• A high proportion of women in Rotherham were born outside the UK in 
other European countries compared to men. 

 
• In Rotherham women outnumber men in the White, Mixed and Asian 

ethnic groups. 
 

• 8 out of 10 women living in Rotherham belong to a religious group. 
 
 
2.3 Crime 
 

• Women in Rotherham tend to be the most fearful of crime despite being 
the least victimised. 

 
 
2.4 Family and Living Characteristics 
 

• There is a higher than average proportion of women who are married or 
re-married living in Rotherham. 

 
• Rotherham also has higher than average numbers of widowed women. 

 
• One third of all women living in Rotherham rent their house from the 

council. 
 

• Just over half of all women living in Rotherham own their own house, 
compared to nearly three quarters of men in the Borough. 

Page 58



 - 10 - 

 
• 9 out of 10 lone parent households in the Borough are headed by women. 

 
• Households in the Borough with lone females aged over 85 has seen a 

significant increase in the last 15 years. 
 
2.5 Health 
 

• Women in the Borough are living longer but for some the extra years of 
longevity are not healthy ones. 

 
• Female life expectancy in the Borough is 79.5 years of age and is 

increasing. 
 

• Rotherham has higher than average numbers of women who are 
permanently sick or disabled. 

 
• 1 in 10 women in the Borough provide unpaid care for at least one hour 

per week. This is one of the highest rates in the country. 
 
• Women in Rotherham are more likely to be suffering from a Limiting Long 

Term Illness. 
 
2.6 Economic 
 

• Rotherham has a higher than average number of women who are 
unemployed, looking after the home/family, retired or permanently sick or 
disabled compared to national averages. 

 
• Three times as many men than women claim Job Seekers Allowance in 

Rotherham 
 

• Women in Rotherham are above the national average in accessing 
Further education but below the national average in accessing Higher 
Education. 

 
• Average weekly earnings for women in Rotherham are £319.30. This is on 

average 27% less than their male counterparts. 
 

 
3. Local Context 
 
3.1 Population 
 

Page 59



 - 11 - 

The number of men and women living in Rotherham was declining from 1991 to 
2001. However, since 2001 the total population of men and women has 
increased year on year, with a large increase in the older age groups. 
 
In the 2004 mid year estimates there were more women than men living in 
Rotherham. A total of 129,200 women live in Rotherham accounting for 51.2% of 
the total population. 7 
 
The table below shows the changes in women living in Rotherham over the past 
15 years. In 2004, the large majority of women living in Rotherham were aged 
between 30 and 60. However, in 1991 the large majority of women living in 
Rotherham were aged 15 to 49. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Table 3.0 - Women by age group, Census data 
Age Group 1991 2001 2004 

15-19 3.4 3.0 3.2 
20-24 3.9 2.6 2.8 
25-29 3.9 3.0 2.7 
30-34 3.7 3.9 3.5 
35-39 3.3 3.9 3.9 
40-44 3.7 3.7 3.8 
45-49 3.1 3.2 3.4 
50-54 2.8 3.6 3.2 
55-59 2.6 3.0 3.4 
60-64 2.6 2.7 2.7 
65-69 2.6 2.4 2.5 
70-74 2.2 2.1 2.1 
75-79 1.8 1.9 1.8 
80-84 1.2 1.4 1.5 
85-89 0.9 1.2 0.8 
90+   0.4 
    
 
The charts below show how the population of Rotherham has changed in 150 
years.  Since 1851, there has been a 92 fold increase of women aged over 85 
living in Rotherham.8  
 
In 1851, there were a total of 33 women over the age of 85 living in Rotherham, 
however in the 2001 Census, this figure has increased to 3,045. Since the 2004 
mid year estimates the current ratio of women to men aged over 85 living in 
Rotherham is 3:1. 
  

                                                                          
7 ONS, 2004 
8 A vision of Britain through time - www.visionofbritain.org.uk 

Page 60



 - 12 - 

A picture of the total population of Rotherham in 1851: 

 

A picture of the total population in Rotherham in 2001: 

 

 
Examining the Chart below the 2004 mid year Rotherham population estimates 
show that females outnumber males in all age groupings above 25 years of age 
with major differences from age 65 onwards.  
 
The 80 to 84 age group has the largest difference between males and females, 
with 6% (1,500) more females than males. This pattern reflects the national 
figures. 
 

Page 61



 - 13 - 

Women outnumber men from the age of 25 partly because of higher net in-
migration among women than men in recent years. In addition, death rates from 
accidents and suicide are much higher for young men than for young women.  
 
This difference between the sexes increases through the 20s and 30s age 
groups, but is smaller again for those in their 40s and early 50s. The gap narrows 
mainly due to higher net inward migration among men in the older working ages. 
 
For people in their late 50s and onwards, the difference between the sexes 
increases, as the death rates are greater among men than among women.  
 
This is most pronounced in the very elderly, as women tend to live longer than 
men. The Second World War has also had an impact on the number of men 
aged over 80.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
Figure 3.2 - Rotherham population by age, 2004 

2004 Rotherham population by quinary age groups 

0

2

4

6

8

10

12

U
nder 1

1 to 4 

5 to 9 

10 to 14 

15 to 19 

20 to 24

25 to 29

30 to 34

35 to 39

40 to 44

45 to 49

50 to 54

55 to 59

60 to 64

65 to 69

70 to 74

75 to 79

80 to 84

85 to 89

90 +
th

ou
sa

nd
s

Male
Female

 
 

Page 62



 - 14 - 

The table below shows the total percentage difference of females to males 
according to the 2004 mid year estimates. The biggest difference is in the age 
groups above 65 years of age. 
 
Table 3.2 - 2004 mid year estimates - % of the total population of Rotherham, ONS 
 
 Men 

 
Women Total % difference of 

females: males 
 

15-19 3.4 3.2 - 0.2 
20-24 2.8 2.8 0 
25-29 2.5 2.7 +0.2 
30-34 3.4 3.5 +0.1 
35-39 3.8 3.9 +0.1 
40-44 3.8 3.8 0 
45-49 3.4 3.4 0 
50-54 3.2 3.2 0 
55-59 3.4 3.4 0 
60-64 2.6 2.7 +0.1 
65-69 2.3 2.5 +0.2 
70-74 1.8 2.1 +0.3 
75-79 1.4 1.8 +0.4 
80-84 0.9 1.5 +0.6 
85-89 0.3 0.8 +0.5 
90+ 0.1 0.4 +0.3 
    
 

The table below shows the gender ratio of women to men living in Rotherham in 
2004. In 2004, there were three times as many women as men aged 85 or over. 
The pattern of women outnumbering men is projected to continue in the future, 
although the gap is expected to narrow as death rates among men continue to 
improve. 
 
 
Table 3.3  - Ratio of women to men living in Rotherham in 2004 
 
Age Group 
 

Ratio 

15-24 0.96 
25-34 1.05 
35-44 1.01 
45-54 1.00 
55-64 1.01 
65-74 1.12 
75-84 1.43 
85+ 3.00 
  
Source: ONS 
 

In 2001-03, female life expectancy across Rotherham was 79.5 which is below 
the England average of 80.7 and there is no sign that Rotherham is closing the 
gap with England on life expectancy. The most recent data below shows that the 
gap is actually widening for females across Rotherham.9 
 
Figure 3.4 - Female life expectancy, 2005 
                                                                          
9 Source: OCSI 2005 (from ONS/DH 1996-2003, NRU Floor Targets) 

Page 63



 - 15 - 

 
Source: OCSI 2005 (from ONS/DH 1996-2003, NRU Floor Targets) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
4. Ethnicity and religious characteristics 
 
Table 4. shows that slightly more women living in Rotherham were born outside 
the UK in other European countries compared with the total population of the 
Borough.  
 

Table 5 – Country of Birth of  women in Rotherham, 2001 Census 
Country of Birth Country of Birth of 

females in Rotherham 
(%) 

Country of Birth of 
the total population in 
Rotherham Borough 
(%) 

Difference between 
the female Population 
in Rotherham and the 
total population in the 
Borough 

 
ALL PEOPLE 

 
127,486 

 
248,188 

 
 0.0 

 
United Kingdom 

 
97.0 

 
97.4 

 
-0.4 

 
Other Europe 

 
1.6 

 
1.0 

 
+0.6 

 
Rest of World 

 
1.4 

 
1.6 

 
-0.2 

    
 
 
Table 5.1  below shows that there are more men than women living in 
Rotherham in the Mixed, Black and Chinese ethnic groups. Whereas women 
outnumber men in the White, Mixed and Asian ethnic groups. 

77.5 

78 

78.5 

79 

79.5 

80 

80.5 

81 

81.5 

1996-98 1997-99 1998-00 1999-01 2000-02 2001-03 

All NRF 88 LAs 
England 
Yorkshire and The Humber 
Yorkshire and The Humber NRF 
Yorkshire and The Humber non-NRF 
Rotherham 

Page 64



 - 16 - 

 
Nationally the ratio of men to women varies across the ethnic groups. There are 
more women than men in the White, Black and Indian groups in England and 
Wales. By contrast, there are more men than women in the Pakistani, 
Bangladeshi, Chinese, and Other groups. 
 
 
Table 5.1 Ratio of women to men living in Rotherham in 2001 - by ethnic group 
 
Ethnic Group 
 

Ratio  
Rotherham 
 

White 
 
White Irish 
 
Mixed 
 
Asian 
 
Black 
 
Chinese & others 

1.05 
 
0.90 
 
1.03 
 
1.01 
 
0.75 
 
0.90 

  
Source: 2001 Census 
 
 
Table 5.2 below shows that 82% of Rotherham’s population in the 2001 Census 
belonged to a religious group compared to 77% in England as a whole. Whereas 
84% of Rotherham’s female population belonged to a religous group. This is 
slightly higher than the borough average of 82% and the national average of 
77%.  
 
Conversely, 10% of the total population of Rotherham said they had no religion, 
rising to 12% for the total male population and falling to 9% for women. This 
shows that women are more liklely to be religious than men. Only 2.1% of 
women living in Rotherham said their religion was Muslim, compared with 2.2% 
for the total Borough average and 2.3% for men.  
 
 
Table 5.2 – Religion of women in Rotherham, 2001 

 
Religion 

 
All people 
 % 

 
Women 

 
Men 

 
 
Christian 

 
79.4 

 
81.2 

 
77.5 

 
Buddhist 

 
0.1 

 
0.0 

 
0.1 

 
Hindu 

 
0.1 

 
0.1 

 
0.1 

 
Jewish 

 
0.0 

 
0.0 

 
0.0 

 
Muslim 

 
2.2 

 
2.1 

 
2.3 

 
Sikh 

 
0.1 

 
0.1 

 
0.1 

 
All other religions 

 
0.1 

 
0.2 

 
0.1 

Page 65



 - 17 - 

 
No religion 

 
10.2 

 
8.7 

 
11.9 

 
Religion not stated 

 
7.8 

 
7.5 

 
8.0 

    
Source: 2001 Census 
 
 
 
6. Crime 
 
In 2004 the Safer Rotherham Partnership conducted a Crime and Disorder Audit 
survey to measure perceptions and attitudes of residents in Rotherham in 
relation to crime and disorder. The survey was sent to 1 in 10 random 
households across the Borough and over 3,200 replies were received. 
 
The findings from question 1 and 2 which asked ‘How concerned are you about 
being a victim of crime?’ and ‘Have you been a victim of crime in the last 2 
years?’ provided some useful infrormation. The findings were analysed by 
gender and show that  females  in Rotherham tend to be the most fearful of crime 
despite actually been the least victimised of crime 
 
 
 
Question 1 - How concerned are you about being a victim of crime in Rotherham? 

0%

10%

20%

30%

40%

50%

VC FC N FU VU

Level of Concern About Crime By Sex

Female
Male

 
 
        Female % Male % 
Very Concerned 845 49.8% 741 47.5% 
Fairly Concerned 639 37.7% 594 38.1% 
Neither Concerned/Unconcerned 138 8.1% 132 8.5% 
Fairly Unconcerned 64 3.8% 67 4.3% 
Very Unconcerned 11 0.6% 25 1.6% 

 
 
Question 2 - Have you been a victim of crime in the last 2 years? 
 

Page 66



 - 18 - 

0%
10%
20%
30%
40%
50%
60%
70%
80%

Never Once Twice More than Twice

Number of times a victim by sex (last 2 years)

Female
Male

 
 

    Female % Male % 
Never   1281 75.3% 1071 68.7% 
Once  259 15.2% 320 20.5% 
Twice  84 4.9% 78 5.0% 
More than Twice 77 4.5% 89 5.7% 

  
 
 
 
7. Family and Living Characteristics 
 
Nine out of ten Lone parent households in the Borough are headed by women. 
The table belows shows the figures for both male and female lone parent 
households. 
 
 
Table 7.1: Lone Parent Households with depedent children, 2001 Census 
 England & 

Wales Males  
% 

England & 
Wales 
Females% 

Rotherham 
Males 
 % 

Rotherham  
Females  
% 

 
All Lone parent households 
with dependent children 

 
10% 

 
90% 

 
10% 

 
90% 

 
 
The graph below shows the relationships of all females aged 16 and over living in 
Rotherham, whether living as a couple or not in households, compared to the 
female population in of England & Wales. 
 
Figure 7.2 – Marital Status of women in Rotherham, Census 2001 
 
 

Page 67



 - 19 - 

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

35

40

45

Single (never married) Married (first
marriage)

Re-married Separated (but still
legally married)

Divorced Widowed

England and Wales Females Rotherham Females
 

 
 
 
The chart above shows that compared to the national average women in 
Rotherham are more likely to be married or re-married. There are fewer numbers 
of women in Rotherham who are single when compared to the national average. 
Rotherham also has slightly higher than average numbers of widowed women. 
 
The table below shows the tenure of women living in Rotherham compared to the 
national average. Rotherham has significantly higher than average rates of 
women renting from the council compared to the national average with nearly 
one third of all women in the Borough renting from the council. 
 
However, Rotherham has below average rates of women living in social rented 
housing or private rented housing than the national average.  
 
Men in Rotherham are more likely to own their own house with nearly three 
quarters of all men in the Borough which is around the national average. 
Whereas just over half of all women in the Borough own their own home. 
 
 
Figure 7.3 – Tenure of women in Rotherham, Census 2001 
 
 England & Wales 

Males % 
England & Wales 
Females% 

Rotherham 
Males % 

Rotherham  
Females % 

Page 68



 - 20 - 

 
Owned 
 
Rented from Council 
 
Other Social Rented 
 
Private rented or 
living rent free 

 
75.0 
 
9.7 
 
4.2 
 
11.1 

 
60.6 
 
17.2 
 
7.9 
 
14.2 

 
74.0 
 
17.7 
 
2.1 
 
6.2 

 
56.5 
 
28.2 
 
4.3 
 
11.0 

     
     
 
 
Households in the Borough in the 2001 Census with Lone females aged over 85 
have increased quite significantly by 1.5% since the 1991 Census. 
 
8. Health Characteristics 
 
 
Life expectancy has increased locally over the past 15 years, but is still below the 
national average. In 2001-03, Female life expectancy across Rotherham was 
79.5, which is below the England average of 80.7. There is no sign that 
Rotherham is closing the gap with England on life expectancy and the most 
recent data shows the gap widening for females. 
 
Although women are living longer, for some, the extra years of longevity are not 
healthy ones. Dementia, respiratory disease, circulatory disease, arthritis, 
hearing and vision problems and diabetes are some of the chronic conditions that 
are on the increase as Rotherham’s female population ages.   
 
Females in Rotherham aged under 75 are more likely to die from cancer 
compared to men. The types of cancer women are more likely to die from 
compared to men in Rotherham are; Breast, Cervix, Pancreas and Ovary. 
However, Breast cancer, Lung cancer and ‘Other’ types of cancer are the 
predominant types of cancer, which kill the most women in Rotherham. 
 
When looking at women in Rotherham of all ages compared to women aged 
under 75, Circulatory Diseases such as Heart Disease and Strokes increase, 
suggesting that these types of diseases are prevalent in women over the age of 
75. This is also reflected in Respiratory Diseases such as Pneumonia. 
 
 
Table 8.1 below shows the percentage of Rotherham residents by Gender and 
underlying cause of death. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 69



 - 21 - 

 
 
Table 8.1: Mortality 2002-2004(3 years) 
Rotherham residents by Gender and Underlying Cause of Death - Number of deaths and percentages  
 Rotherham 

Males 
All ages % 

Rotherham 
Females 
All ages% 

Rotherham 
Males 
Aged under 75 % 

Rotherham  
Females  
Aged under 75% 

 
Circulatory Diseases 
 
Cancer 
 
Respiratory Disease 
 
Accidents 
 
Suicide/Injury 
undetermined 
 
Other causes 
 
All causes 
 

 
39% 
 
29% 
 
13% 
 
3% 
 
1% 
 
 
15% 
 
100% 

 
38% 
 
24% 
 
16% 
 
2% 
 
0% 
 
 
20% 
 
100% 

 
34% 
 
35% 
 
8% 
 
4% 
 
3% 
 
 
16% 
 
100% 
 
 

 
27% 
 
44% 
 
11% 
 
2% 
 
1% 
 
 
16% 
 
100% 
 
 

Source: Office for National Statistics 
 
 
Figures from the 2001 Census show that Rotherham has higher rates of women 
who are permanently sick or disabled (6.6%) compared to the national average 
of 4.9%. The 2001 Census also found that 8.6% of all women in the Borough 
provide unpaid care for at least one hour per week.  
 
In 2001 Rotherham was ranked 14th out of all the 376 Local Authority areas for 
the number of unpaid carers. Rotherham’s women provide the majority of that 
higher than average unpaid care, particuarly women who provide more tham 50 
hours or more of unpaid care per week. 
 
The table below shows the percentage of women and men providing unpaid care 
in Rotherham with comparisons to national averages.  
 
 
Figure 8.1 –Provision of unpaid care, Census 2001 
 England & Wales 

Males % 
England & Wales 
Females% 

Rotherham 
Males % 

Rotherham  
Females % 

 
1- 19 hours 
 
20-49 hours 
 
50 hours or more 
 
 
 

 
6.2 
 
0.9 
 
1.7 
 
 

 
6.9 
 
1.2 
 
2.5 
 
 

 
6.9 
 
1.2 
 
2.5 
 
 

 
8.6 
 
1.9 
 
3.5 

 
 

Page 70



 - 22 - 

The 2005 Rotherham PCT Adult Lifestyle Survey found that 12% of women in the 
Borough care for someone in their home who has a long term illness or disability 
compared to 9% of men. 
 
According to the 2001 Census, slightly more females than males reported that 
they had a Limiting Long Term Ilness (LLTI). A total of 22.1% of all females living 
in the Borough compared to 21.4% of all males living in the Borough. 
 
The 2001 Census also asked questions related to ill health. Figure 8.2 below 
shows that more women reported having fairly good health or not good health 
compared to men in the Borough.  
 
Figure 8.2 – Health of the Borough, Census 2001 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

Total %

Good Health Fairly Good health Not Good health

Males Females
 

 
 
 
 

Table 8.3 shows the teenage pregnancy rates across Rotherham compared to 
national averages over the period 1996 to 2002 (three-year averages are used to 
smooth fluctuation).  
 
There are signs of good progress in Rotherham in the period 1999 – 2002 and 
the indications for 2001-03 are that rates have stabilised. However, in the most 
deprived wards (Herringthorpe and Central) teenage pregnancy levels are four 
times that in the least deprived ward (Broom).  
The most deprived 20% of wards show the highest levels of teenage pregnancies 
as expected, however evidence from the 2005 Deprivation study shows that the 

Page 71



 - 23 - 

rate in these areas is dropping faster than across Rotherham as a whole, in other 
words that the most deprived areas are closing the gap.  
 

Table 8.3: Teenage pregnancy rates per 1,000 

 1996-98  1997-99  1998-00  1999-01  2000-02  
      
England  46.0 45.6 45.0 43.6 42.9 
      
Rotherham  
 

55.8 56.3 55.2 54.1 50.9 

Source: OCSI 2005 (from ONS/DH 1996-2002, NRU Floor Targets) 

 

In 2005, Rotherham PCT’s Public Health Department undertook an adult 
lifestyles postal survey with adults aged 16-70 living in Rotherham and found that 
20% of all females surveyed smoked compared to 28% of all males surveyed. 

 
9. Economic Characteristics 
Employment rates across Rotherham have increased significantly in recent 
years, from 66% in 1997/8 to 73% in 2003/4, and increased at a faster rate than 
across England, the region and the other Neighbourhood Renewal Fund (NRF) 
areas (the most deprived 88 Local Authority areas in England).  
Overall, it would appear that Rotherham as a whole is significantly closing the 
gap in terms of employment. However, there are strong indications that not all 
groups are benefiting equally from the improvement in employment opportunities 
across the Borough.  
In particular, employment rates among older people, lone parents, those with no 
qualifications, and non-white female groups show significantly poorer levels and 
progress. 10 
 
Table 9.1 shows Economic Activity by age and gender.  

 Rotherham (%) Yorkshire and 
Humber (%) 

England (%) 

All people working age  76.2 77.9 78.5 
    
People aged 16-19  61.3 64.5 60.1 
People aged 20-24 80.0 74.6 76.2 
People aged 25-34 81.5 81.9 83.2 
People aged 35-49 86.8 85.2 84.9 
People aged 50+ 31.6 36.5 38.3 
    
All men working age 82.8 82.9 83.8 
All women working age 69.1 72.5 72.9 
 
Source: OCSI 2005 (from Annual Local Area Labour Force Survey, ALALFS 2003/4, NOMIS 
 
 

                                                                          
10 OCSI, Rotherham Deprivation Study, 2005 

Page 72



 - 24 - 

Table 9.2 below shows the employment rates for white and non-white groups by 
gender. Overall employment rates for non-white groups across Rotherham, the 
region and England as a whole are well below employment rates for white 
groups.  
 
In Rotherham this is seen as a consequence of the extremely low employment 
rates for non-white female groups, likely due to cultural issues in the mainly 
Pakistani non-white communities. By contrast, male non-white employment rates 
in Rotherham are significantly higher than in the region and England as a whole.  
 
 
Table 9.2 - Working age employment rates by ethnicity and gender 
 Rotherham (%) Yorkshire and 

Humber (%) 
England (%) 

White 73.8 75.4 76.4 
Non-white 49.6 55.6 58.1 
    
White males 79.6 79.4 80.8 
Non-white males 73.4 65.5 66.4 
    
White females 67.5 71.1 71.8 
Non-white females 25.3 43.5 49.8 
Source: OCSI 2005 (from Annual Local Area Labour Force Survey, ALALFS 2003/4, NOMIS) 
 
 
Table 9.3 below shows economic activity for women living in Rotherham.  The 
2001 Census findings below show that women in Rotherham are more likely to 
be unemployed, looking after the home/family, retired or permanently sick or 
disabled compared to women nationally. 
 
The findings show that women in Rotherham are less likely to be self-employed, 
employed or Full-time students.  
 
 
 
Table 9.3  – Economic Activity of Women, 2001 Census 
 Rotherham  

%  
England & Wales % 

Economically Active   
 
Employee  

 
49.4 

 
49.9 

 
Self Employed  

 
2.8 

 
4.4 

 
Unemployed 

 
2.8 

 
2.4 

 
Full-time Student 

 
2.1 

 
2.8 

 
Economically Inactive 

 
 

 
 

 
Retired 

 
16.5 

 
15.5 

 
Student 

 
3.0 

 
4.7 

 
Looking After Home/Family 

 
13.0 

 
11.9 

Page 73



 - 25 - 

 
Permanently Sick or Disabled 

 
6.6 

 
4.9 

 
Other 

 
3.8 

 
3.5 

   
Notes – All figures relating to economically active are expressed as a percentage of economically active 
persons.All figures relating to economically inactive are expressed as a percentage of economically inactive 
persons. 
 
The table below shows DWP benefit claimants and cases in payment caseload in 
Rotherham in August 2005. Women in Rotherham are more likely to claim income 
support than men, this may be due to the fact that lone parents who are predominantly 
female do not qualify for Job Seekers Allowance (JSA). This would suggest why there 
are nearly 3 times as many men than women claiming JSA in Rotherham. 
 
Women in Rotherham are also more likely to claim Attendance Allowance and Carers 
Allowance. This is due to the higher than average numbers of women in the Borough 
providing unpaid care.  
 
 
Table 9.4 - DWP benefit Claimants 
Type of benefit Females Males 
 
Disability Living Allowance 
 
Incapacity Benefit  (cases in payment caseload) 
 
Income Support 
 
Job Seekers Allowance 

 
9.0 
 
5.0 
 
6.5 
 
1.1 

 
9.5 
 
8.5 
 
4.1 
 
3.0 

 
Attendance Allowance (cases in payment caseload) 
 
Carers Allowance (cases in payment caseload) 

 
4.9 
 
2.3 

 
2.2 
 
0.8 

   
   
Source: DWP, August 2005 
 
 
Table 9.5: Average weekly and hourly pay 
 Rotherham Yorkshire & Humber Great Britain 
Gross weekly pay 
Full-time workers 
Male full-time workers 
Female full-time workers 
 
Hourly pay 

 
389.9 
436.0 
319.3 

 
394.8 
435.1 
330.5 

 
422.9 
464.5 
359.0 

Full-time workers 
Male full-time workers 
Female full-time workers 
 

9.4 
10.1 
8.3 
 

9.7 
10.3 
8.7 

10.6 
11.2 
9.5 

    
Source: NOMIS Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, 2004 
 
 
The table below shows levels of qualifications of women and men  in Rotherham 
compared with women and men in England. Just over half of all women in 

Page 74



 - 26 - 

Rotherham have no qualifications this compares with just over half of all women 
nationally.  
 
The data shows that women in Rotherham are more likely to study up to A’Level 
when compared to the national average but less women in Rotherham go onto 
Higher Education to gain a first degree when compared to the national average. 
However, there are more women in Rotherham who go on to gain a higher 
degree compared to the national average. 
 
Again this pattern is reflected at NVQ level. The data shows that women in 
Rotherham are more likely to study up to NVQ Level 2 when compared to the 
national average but less women in Rotherham continue their study up to NVQ 
Level 4 when compared to the national average. 
 
These findings suggest that women in Rotherham are above the national 
average in accessing further education but below the national average in 
accessing Higher Education. This could due to a number of reasons. Firstly, 
those women who do go on to higher education are not returning to live in 
Rotherham. Secondly, women in Rotherham decide not to continue their studies 
to a higher level and enter the labour market instead. 
 
Table 9.6 Count of qulaifications by Sex, 2001 Census 
 England & 

Wales  
Males % 

England & 
Wales 
Females% 

Rotherham 
Males  
% 

Rotherham  
Females  
% 

 
No qualifications 
 
GCSE 
 
A’Level/AS Level 
 
First Degree 
 
Higher Degree 
 
NVQ level 1  
 
NVQ level 2 
 
NVQ level 3 
 
NVQ level 4 
 
Other qualifications 
 

 
47.2 
 
48.4 
 
49.5 
 
53.2 
 
53.7 
 
47.5 
 
44.4 
 
46.4 
 
69.7 
 
52.2 

 
52.8 
 
51.6 
 
50.5 
 
46.8 
 
46.3 
 
52.5 
 
55.6 
 
53.6 
 
30.3 
 
47.8 
 

 
47.2 
 
47.9 
 
48.9 
 
54.4 
 
52.7 
 
47.5 
 
44.3 
 
46.8 
 
73.7 
 
52.7 
 
 

 
52.8 
 
52.1 
 
51.1 
 
45.6 
 
47.3 
 
52.5 
 
55.7 
 
53.2 
 
26.3 
 
47.3 

 
 
10. Consultation (delete) 
 
Women are consulted with on a regular basis within Rotherham MBC as part of a 
wider approach. Their views and opinions are valued and help to shape future 

Page 75



 - 27 - 

policies. Whilst we use research and data sources such as the Census to 
analyse our female population in Rotherham we also use consultation as a way 
to listen to residents. 
 
Recently, women have been consulted around setting Council budget spending 
priorities for the 2006/7 Financial year. Women have also been consulted with in 
relation to the Town Centre Social and Environmental Action Plan and the 
Visioning Exercise as part of the refresh of the Community Strategy.  
 
The Council’s New Quality of Life Survey will also measure perceptions and 
attitudes of women in Rotherham. The survey measures best value, quality of 
life, access to, and general satisfaction with, the customer facing services 
provided by Rotherham Borough Council 
 
11.Summary 
 
The profile of women in Rotherham has portrayed a picture similar to that of 
women across the country. Nationally and locally, women begin to outnumber 
men in their early twenties. For women in their late fifties and onwards the 
difference between the sexes continues. There are around three and a half times 
as many women as men aged 90 and over. 

In terms of ethnicity, nationally women outnumber men in the White, Black and 
Indian ethnic groups, in Rotherham women outnumber men in the White, Mixed 
and Asian ethnic groups. 

Nationally, fear of crime is a major concern for both sexes. However, women 
tend to worry more about most types of crime, particularly violent crime even 
though men are most likely to become a victim of crime.  For both sexes, 
particularly women, there is an inverse perception around being a victim of crime. 
The fear of crime greatly outweighs the actual risk. This is reflected in the 
findings from the 2004 Rotherham Crime and Disorder Audit. 

The number of single, lone mothers has grown significantly in the past 30 years. 
This is due in part to the rise in the proportion of births outside of marriage. 
Although Rotherham has higher than average numbers of women who are 
married or re-married compared to national averages. 

In Rotherham 9 out of 10 lone parent households are headed by a woman. Lone 
mothers are more likely to be renting from social sector housing and one third of 
all women living in Rotherham rent their house from the Council.  

We are seeing a significant increase of households with lone females aged over 
85 living in Rotherham - a direct result of increased life expectancy. Nationally, 
there are two and a half times as many women in residential care as men. 

Page 76



 - 28 - 

Female life expectancy is on the increase, currently women in Rotherham can 
expect to live to 79.5 years of age. However, while women can expect to live 
longer than men, for some, the extra years of longevity are not healthy ones. 
Rotherham has higher than average numbers of women who are permanently 
sick or disabled compared to national averages, possibly a reflection of the 
ageing female population. 

Rotherham is ranked 14th in the country for the number of unpaid carers. 
Rotherham’s women provide the majority of that unpaid care, particularly women 
who provide more than 50 hours of unpaid care per week. One in ten women in 
Rotherham provide unpaid care for at least one hour per week 

The latter part of the 20th century has been a period of rapid change in the labour 
market and in many ways, the lives of women and men have become more 
similar, as more and more women have entered the labour market. However, 
despite this, differences remain. Although the pay gap has narrowed, women still 
earn less than men and follow very different career paths.  

Nationally, the earnings gap in full-time work has reduced considerably in the last 
30 years.  In 1970, the ratio of women’s to men’s average earnings was 63 per 
cent.  In 2006, this has increased to 83 per cent.11  However, in Rotherham, 
women earn on average 27% less per week than their male counterparts.12 

Rotherham has higher than average numbers of women who are economically 
inactive i.e. unemployed, looking after the home/family, retired or permanently 
sick/disabled.  
 
In terms of education, women in Rotherham are above the national average in 
accessing further education, but below the national average in accessing higher 
education. This could be due to a number of reasons. GCSE results!!!! 
 
Firstly, those women who do go on to higher education are not returning to live in 
Rotherham. Secondly, women in Rotherham decide not to continue their studies 
to a higher level and enter the labour market instead.  
 
Clearly, there are marked differences between the sexes. For women in 
Rotherham the research data suggests that their needs and priorities are focused 
around the Labour market, Education, Housing and Health. 
 

                                                                          
11 Women and equality Unit, 2005 
12 NOMIS, Annual Survey of Hours and Earnings, 2004 

Page 77



 - 29 - 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 78



 - 30 - 

 

 

Page 79


